
 

 

 
 

  

   
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

STUDY SESSION 5:30 p.m. 
 

Please turn off cell phones and pagers, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 
 

 

1.   Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker's 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation 
 

2. Presentation – Boys and Girls Clubs of America 
 

3. Closed Session Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time. In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

4. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
♦ Conference with Labor Negotiator, Government Code Section 54957.6 

Agency Negotiator:  Susan Wells 
Employee Organization:  GASE 

♦ Conference with Legal Council, Potential Litigation, Significant Exposure to Litigation  
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 

            Cases:  Two 
♦ Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 

Property:  APN 024-051-034 
Under Negotiation: Acquisition 
Negotiating Parties:  Acting City Manager Laws/Gary V. Burrows, Inc. 

♦ Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
       Property:  APN 023-400-002, 023-400-003 
       Under Negotiation:  Acquisition 
       Negotiating Party:  Acting City Manager Laws 

♦ Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
       Property:  APN 023-400-001 
       Under Negotiation:  Acquisition 
       Negotiating Party:  Acting City Manager Laws 
 

5. Adjourn to Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

429 “C” STREET 
April 16, 2013 



 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL – 7:30 p.m. 
 

Please turn off cell phones and pagers, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 
 

1.   Call to Order:       A. Pledge of Allegiance          B.  Invocation 
 

2.   Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker's 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

Items for Council Consideration and Action 
 

3. Consent Calendar: 
 

All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion.  For discussion of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the 
request of any member of the City Council or any person in the audience.  

 

A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – April 2, 2013 
B. Approval – Minutes – Special Meeting – April 9, 2013 
C. Approval –  Warrant Register 12-13 – April 11, 2013 
D. Approval –  Resolution 2013-07 – Local Transportation Fund Share 
E. Approval –  Authorization of Changes to the 2012 Double Chip Seal Project 
F. Approval – Authorization to Advertise for Bids – 2013 Reclamite Street Maintenance 

Program       
G. Approval –  Authorization to Advertise for Bids - 2013 Street Overlay Project                     
H. Approval –  Annual Housing Element and Regional Housing Needs Allocation Progress 

Report 
 

4.   Public Hearing – Chevron Energy Solutions Solar Project – Energy Service Contract – Incurrence   
      of Debt  
 

5.   Report and Recommendation – Acceptance of Audited Financial Statements 
 

6. Report and Recommendation – MOU – Lemoore Police Officers Association – January 1, 2013- 
December 31, 2014 

 

7. Report and Recommendation – MOU – Amendment Police Sergeants Association – January 1, 
2013-December 31, 2014 

 

8. Report and Recommendation – Appointment of Council Member to Budget Process 
 

9. Discussion – City Manager Recruitment  
 

10. Approval – Warrant Register – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable Obligation Payment 
Schedule  

 

11. Department/City Manager Reports 
 

12. Council Reports and Requests for Information 
 

13. Closed Session Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time. In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

 

14. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
♦ Conference with Labor Negotiator, Government Code Section 54957.6 

Agency Negotiator:  Susan Wells 
Employee Organization:  GASE 

♦ Conference with Legal Council, Potential Litigation, Significant Exposure to Litigation  
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 

            Cases:  Two 



 

 

♦ Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
Property:  APN 024-051-034 
Under Negotiation: Acquisition 
Negotiating Parties:  Acting City Manager Laws/Gary V. Burrows, Inc. 

♦ Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
       Property:  APN 023-400-002, 023-400-003 
       Under Negotiation:  Acquisition 
       Negotiating Party:  Acting City Manager Laws 

♦ Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
       Property:  APN 023-400-001 
       Under Negotiation:  Acquisition 
                  Negotiating Party:  Acting City Manager Laws 

15. Adjournment 
 

 
 

TENTATIVE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
May 7th  
Study Session – Updates – Impact Fees – Master User Fees 
Approval – Letters of Opposition – Gun Control Laws 
Approval – Tract 872 – Wathen Castanos – Subdivision Agreement 
Public Hearing – Continuation of Chevron Energy Solutions Solar Project - Facility Financing Contract – Incurrence of Debt 
Public Hearing – 77’ Aerial Quint Fire Truck – Incurrence of Debt 
Report and Recommendation – First Reading – Ordinance 2013-02 Prohibiting Blowing, Raking or Sweeping Yard Debris onto Public Rights of Way 
 
 
Notice of ADA Compliance:  If you or anyone in your party needs reasonable accommodation to 
attend, or participate in, any City Council Meeting, please make arrangements by contacting the 
Human Resources Office at City Hall 24 hours prior to the meeting.  They can be reached by calling 
924-6700, or by mail at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, California 93245. 
 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 
119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In addition, most documents will be 
posted on the City’s website at www.lemoore.com. 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
 

  I, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore, do hereby declare that the foregoing agenda for 
the Lemoore City Council regular meeting of Tuesday, April 16, 2013 was posted on the outside 
bulletin board located at City Hall, 119 Fox Street in accordance with applicable legal requirements.  
Dated this 12th day of April 2013. 

             
      Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk  



“In God We Trust” 
 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

CALIFORNIA 

Office of the  
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 
SS  
ITEM NO. 2 

To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Brooke Austin, Executive Secretary  
Date: April 11, 2013  

Subject: Boys and Girls Clubs of America Presentation 
 

 
Discussion 
Council Member Neal has requested this item to be placed on the Study Session to 
discuss the possibility of locating a Boys and Girls Club in Lemoore.  Joe Engelbrecht 
the Executive Director of Boys and Girls Clubs of America will be here Tuesday evening 
to make a presentation. 
 
Budget Impact 
None at this time. 
 
Recommendation 
For Council consideration only. 



 1

        Item _3A_ 
 

             
 

Minutes of the Study Session of the  
LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 

April 2, 2013 
 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 5:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal; Acting 
City Manager/Police Chief Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; Finance Director 
Silva; Public Works Director Wlaschin; Planning Director Smyth; Parks and 
Recreation Director Simonson; Project Manager Holwell; Executive Secretary 
Austin; Administrative Analyst Apone; Administrative Analyst Prichard; City 
Clerk Baley 
 

ABSENT:  
 Council Member Rodarmel 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT:   
 It was moved by Council Member Gordon and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
 Wynne and carried to add an emergency item to the Closed Session          
 concerning Possible Litigation Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9  
 
 Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Siegel Absent:  Rodarmel 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

 Sandra Dawson, Chairman of the Kings County Homecoming Committee      
invited the public to attend the Kings County Homecoming May 13-18, 2013.  
Dr. James and Sharon Gordon have been selected to serve as the          
Homecoming King and Queen representing Lemoore.   
 

PRESENTATION – CHEVRON ENERGY SOLUTIONS – PROPOSAL – SOLAR                  
PHOTOVOLTAIC FOR WATER AND SEWER UTILITIES: 

A. All sites excluding Well #12 
B. Well #12 Site 

Analyst Apone introduced the revisions to the Chevron proposal for Lemoore 
and reminded Council that the presentation would be broken up into two parts 
because Mayor Pro Tem Wynne lives adjacent to Well Site #12.  Wynne 
recused herself prior to that project. 
 
Apone presented the financing currently proposed for the project and said that 
she and the Finance Director are researching alternative financing that will be 
presented to the Council April 16, 2013.  She provided Council with solar panel 
warranty information and expressed that the amount of rebate wattage      
available is decreasing.   



 2

Apone requested Council direct Acting City Manager Laws to sign the  
California Solar Initiative Rebate Application with the understanding that there 
is no out of pocket cost to the City for doing so.   
 
Ashu Jain provided Council with the additional information requested during 
the April 2nd presentation including the reduction in amount of wattage at Well 
#6 and #7;   watertight carports at Cinnamon Municipal Complex (CMC); the 
reduction in price to accommodate the City; considerable increase in size of 
Well #10; more panels at various sites to offset the usage allocated elsewhere; 
adding panels to the roof at the Police Department; return on investment and           
financing  information; and warranty on inverters. 
 
Council directed Acting City Manager Laws to sign the application and Mayor 
Siegel requested Jain work with staff to provide Council with alternate  
financing information. 
 
Jain explained that although the consumption at Well #12 has decreased the 
cost of electricity has increased, creating an attractive project with substantial 
savings. 
 
In addition, a Public Hearing will be scheduled for April 16th to consider        
approval of an Energy Service Contract and/or a Facility Financing Contract. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENT:   
   Mayor Siegel announced the Closed Session Items to be discussed. 
 
CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 There was no comment. 
    
ADJOURN TO LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION: 

At 6:26 p.m., the Council adjourned to closed session regarding labor           
negotiations, public employee appointment, real property negotiations and 
possible litigation.  There was no announcement. 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  At 7:27 p.m., Council adjourned to the Regular Meeting. 
 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the  
LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 

April 2, 2013 
 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal; Acting 
City Manager/Police Chief Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; Finance Director 
Silva; Public Works Director Wlaschin; Planning Director Smyth; Parks and 
Recreation Director Simonson; Project Manager Holwell; Executive Secretary 
Austin; Administrative Analyst Apone; Administrative Analyst Prichard; City 
Clerk Baley 



 3

 
ABSENT:  
 Council Member Rodarmel 
 
PRESENTATION – EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER: 

On behalf of the City of Lemoore, Mayor Siegel expressed gratitude to Animal 
Control Officer Ray Fratus for his service and presented him with an Employee 
of the Quarter proclamation. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENT:   
 Mayor Siegel announced changes to Consent Calendar Item 5C – Warrant 
 Register – Addition of “City Manager Severance in the amount of $179,137.36” 
 and 5F – Approval of “Acting” City Manager. 
 
PRESENTATION – LEMOORE RECREATION – CHEERS SQUADS:  

Recreation Specialist Taylor introduced Cheer Instructor Jennifer Melindez 
who presented the Lemoore Cheer Squads and their accomplishments,  
including that of the All Star Cheer Team. 

 
EMERGENCY ITEM – ITEM 5C – CITY MANAGER SEVERANCE $179,137.36: 
 It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
 Wynne and carried by Council to amend to Consent Calendar Item 5C Warrant 
 Register, adding City Manager Severance in the amount of $179,137.36 as 
 previously announced by Mayor Siegel. 
 
 AYES: Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Siegel Absent:  Rodarmel 
  
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 William Munoz informed the Council that Assembly Member Rudy Salas
 opened a new office at 113 Court Street in Hanford and invited the public to 
 “Rudy Salas’s Coffee” event Saturday, at 10 a.m. on April 6th at the Lemoore 
 Veterans Hall located at 411 “D” Street. 
  
CONSENT CALENDAR: 

It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Wynne and carried by Council to approve the Consent Calendar with     
amendments to Item 5C and 5F. 
 

A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – March 19, 2013 
B. Approval – Minutes – Special Meeting – March 28, 2013 
C. Approval – Warrant Register 12-13 – March 28, 2013 
D. Approval – City Investment Policy – Resolution 2013-03 
E. Approval – Letter of Support – Homebasing the F-35C at Naval Air Station 

Lemoore 
F. Approval – Appointment of Interim City Manager 
G. Approval – Resolution 2013-04 – Bank Signature Cards 

 
 Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Siegel Absent: Rodarmel 
 
 
 
 



 4

 
PUBLIC HEARING – CDBG GRANT 08-EDEF-5881 – FINAL GRANTEE PERFORMANCE  
REPORT – MICROENTERPRISE FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM CLOSEOUT: 
 Clerk Baley presented a brief summary of the Program Close Out Report        
 approved in 2012 and recommended that Council open public comment     
 concerning the Final Grantee Performance Report. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
  There was no comment. 
 
 It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
 Wynne to approve the Final Grantee Performance report. 
 
 AYES: Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Siegel Absent:  Rodarmel 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – DECLARING PUBLIC NUISANCES – ORDERING WEED ABATEMENT: 
 Acting City Manager/Police Chief Laws informed Council of the abatement 
 process. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 Chriss Dickman expressed concern for those who are elderly or disabled and 
 asked if the City has an assistance program.  She also stated that while she 
 commends the Code Enforcement Officer for her diligence, some of the    
 property owners do not comply in a timely manner. 
 
 Vernon Sandall expressed concern about blight and hazards caused by      
 foreclosure properties that are not maintained by the bank or realty company.  
 
 Council instructed staff to continue abatement efforts. 
 
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – PARTICIPATION IN THE EMPLOYMENT RISK  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY – RESOLUTION 2013-05: 
 Analyst Prichard presented Council with information concerning liability        
 exposure and recommended that Council adopt Resolution 2013-05 with an 
 SIR amount of $25,000: 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 There was no comment. 

 
It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Wynne, seconded by Council Member  
Gordon and carried to adopt Resolution 2013-05 with an SIR amount of 
$25,000. 

 
 Ayes:  Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Siegel Absent:  Rodarmel 
 
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – REPLACEMENT OF COUNCIL CHAMBERS AUDIO 
EQUIPMENT: 
 Executive Secretary Austin presented Council with an update concerning the 
 status of the current audio equipment as explained by a repairman and the  
 options that were presented by an audio company to replace the microphones. 
 



 5

 Austin recommended Council wait to make a decision, because the     
 audio processor is said to be the problem and is now unhooked from system.   
 
 Council agreed to table the item and directed staff to continue to monitor the 
 system.   
  
DEPARTMENT/CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

Planning Director Smyth informed Council she has requested estimates for the 
CDBG Grant Application, but they are not yet available and will be presented 
to Council for review at the Joint City Council/Planning Commission Meeting 
April 9th.  She also stated the Planning Department is expected to approve the 
completion of a new pocket park at Cedar Lane and Acacia very soon.  
 
Public Works Director Wlaschin informed Council Caltrans has scheduled a 
19th Avenue Interchange groundbreaking for April 19th at 11 a.m. and Clerk 
Baley is taking names of those who would like to speak. Work is progressing.  
Granite Construction has begun some of the work and the City is working with 
its contractor on the grading of the park and the ponding basin. 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Simonson informed Council that Cross Fit 
moved into the Corporation Yard.  At this time, with the staff available, the 
scheduled classes are at full capacity. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION: 
 Mayor Siegel informed the public of Council’s forced resignation of City     
 Manager Briltz.  He stated it was not any one thing that caused Council’s        
 request, but the Council wanted to move in a different direction than Briltz 
 was prepared to move.  He directed staff to direct questions concerning their 
 duties to Acting City  Manager/Police Chief Laws.  
 

Council Member Gordon stated requesting the resignation of the City Manager 
was not a knee jerk decision.  It was an hour and a half deliberation during the 
Closed Session – Evaluation – City Manager proceedings on March 28, 2013.    

 
CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 There was no comment. 
    
ADJOURN TO LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION: 

At 8:27 p.m., the Council adjourned to closed session regarding labor           
negotiations, public employee appointment and real property negotiations.  
There was no announcement. 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 At 9:10 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 6

Approved the 16th day of April, 2013. 
 
Full digital audio recording is available. 
 
 
 

              
        William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 

       
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 



 1

        Item _3B_ 
 

             
 

Minutes of the Special Joint Meeting of the  
LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL/LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION 

April 9, 2013 
 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 6:05 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal,       
Rodarmel; Planning Commission Chairperson Meade; Vice Chairperson    
Garcia; Commissioners Brown, Clement, Martin, Monreal, Wynne; Acting City 
Manager/Police Chief Laws; Public Works Director Wlaschin; Planning         
Director Smyth; Project Manager Holwell; Administrative Analyst Prichard;          
Assistant Planner Hobbs; Planning Commission Clerk Bridges; City Clerk 
Baley 
 

ABSENT:   City Attorney Avedisian 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT: 

 Mayor Siegel announced that City Council would adjourn to Lemoore City 
Council Closed Session at the same time the Planning Commission adjourns 
to the Special Lemoore Planning Commission Meeting. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING – CDBG GRANT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL: 
 Planning Director Smyth presented a revised cost estimate and resolution           
 reflecting the three activities that would be applied for within the grant          
 application. 
 
 Activity #1 Lemoore Senior Center – Rehabilitation and Energy Upgrades:           
 Smyth provided detailed information about rehabilitation and energy upgrades 
 needed for each building at the Lemoore Senior Center site. She also         
 provided detailed cost information and acknowledged health and safety       
 issues.  Smyth explained that the City’s building inspector and various          
 contractors provided prevailing wage and deferred maintenance information 
 and that Chevron Energy Solutions was available to provide her with energy 
 efficiency upgrade information. The City also received third party evaluations. 
 

Activity #2 Business Assistance – Microenterprise Assistance – Business    
Training for Economic Development: 
Smyth provided the results of a business assistance survey and explained that 
the purpose of the survey was to find out what activities interest small        
businesses in Lemoore.  She projected that most of the grant funds will focus 
on home occupations which make up 30% of the small businesses in          
Lemoore.  Smyth stated that a letter of support was received from the Kings 
Economic Development Corporation (Kings EDC).  
 



 2

Council Member Gordon showed concern about the possibility of increasing 
overhead at this time.  He asked Kings EDC President/CEO John Lehn if the 
grant funds would duplicate the small business loans already provided by 
Kings EDC and if his staff would be available to assist with underwriting  
processes if needed.   
 
Mr. Lehn stated his only concern at this time is the City’s capacity to           
underwrite the loans.  However, he also stated Kings EDC staff should be 
available to assist City staff with that process.  Mr. Lehn said Kings EDC loans 
are generally $5,000 to $250,000 and that the grant program funds would  
assist microenterprise businesses with smaller loans from $250 to $10,000; 
therefore he did not see a duplication issue.  
 
Smyth provided detailed information concerning the procurement of contracts 
and CDBG requirements and projected that ten businesses would be assisted 
with the business assistance loans and the training assistance program is    
projected to allow two trainings per month for two years. 
 

 Activity #3 Microenterprise Planning Technical Assistance Grant – West Hills 
 College Culinary Department – Restaurant Incubator: 

Smyth informed the public this activity is a study and information provided will 
be helpful in the future for bringing in new business. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT – CDBG GRANT APPLICATION: 
 Mayor Siegel opened public comment. 
 

Kings EDC President/CEO John Lehn asked if the scope of the incubator  
concept could be expanded to include the supply and demand needs of small 
businesses in downtown Lemoore as well with the expectation that it may lead 
to expansion into other areas. 

 
Smyth suggested adding language to Resolution 2013-06 indicating Kings 
EDC is supportive of a Planning Technical Assistance grant to review the  
potential for a small business incubator in addition to the restaurant incubator. 

 
 Council Member Gordon questioned the success of the 2009 Adaptive Reuse 
 Study.  
 
 Project Manager Holwell explained that in the case of the Adaptive Reuse      
 Study, the property owners did not want to spend their own money for the          
 improvements suggested in the study.  Pioneer Square was one of the           
 properties studied, but in the end, the property owner decided to make façade     
 improvements instead. 
 
 Mayor Siegel asked if the study could be modified to grandfather in existing 
 businesses so that they could take advantage of the incubators and reinvent 
 themselves. 
 

Smyth stated the business assistance program is part of the application so that 
existing businesses receive benefits of the grant as well. 

 



 3

 West Hills College (WHC) President Don Warkentin stated that WHC has a 
 significant culinary program and sees the grant as a way to provide training 
 opportunities to the public. 
 
 Mayor Siegel asked for more information about the outcome of the incubator 
 study.   
 
 Planning Director Smyth explained the structure of the study. 
 

Lemoore Senior Center’s Stretch Derouin thanked everyone involved in     
supporting the Senior Center.  He expressed his enthusiasm for the           
rehabilitation and energy upgrades projected in the application. 

  
 Syd Smyth asked if the funds could be used to clean up the contaminated 
 ground near the Senior Center so that it could be used by the seniors for a 
 vegetable garden. 
 

The Mayor was unsure if the area in question is still contaminated or who the 
owner is and asked Planning Director Smyth to clarify. 

 
Planning Director Smyth informed the public that the property in question is not 
part of Activity #1 and it is on the side of the Little League property. 

 
 Planning Commissioner Dave Brown questioned the scope of work for the          
 Senior Center and asked if the possibility of asbestos assessment and          
 abatement costs have been addressed. 
 

Planning Director Smyth confirmed asbestos assessment and abatement are 
requirements of the grant; however the cost for these requirements has not 
been included in the total project cost.  She stated because there is only a 3% 
to 4% contingency, the cost would be paid out of the general fund. 

 
Parks and Recreation Commissioner Ernie Smith expressed support for the 
project and stated the Senior Center is a viable location and the building has 
the potential to be used for various things.   

 
 Mayor Siegel asked if any private groups have offered assistance to the
 Senior Center. 
 

Senior Center Board Acting President Richard Rey stated they recently  
contacted businesses for donations and they did receive some funding.  He 
said Lemoore Christian Aid has also shown interest in selling their building and 
sharing the Senior Center facility, as well as expenses, should the project 
move forward.  He also noted Lemoore is the only self supported Senior  
Center in the area. 

 
  
 
 
 



 4

 Planning Commissioner Monreal expressed his support for including asbestos       
 assessment and removal costs as part of each of the Senior Center phases.  
 He suggested assessing the presence of asbestos first for each of the three 
 buildings as they are rehabilitated and then modifying other areas of the     
 project to bring the Activity within budget. 
 
 Planning Commissioner Jeff Garcia asked how accurate the projected costs 
 of the Senior Center projects are. 
 
 Smyth replied that the projected costs are as close as they could be without           
 detailed specifications. 
 
 Mayor Siegel confirmed that a sign in sheet had been passed around the 
 room and closed Public Comment. 
    
ADJOURNMENT TO SPECIAL MEETING OF THE LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL:  

At 7:16 p.m. Council adjourned to the Special Meeting of the Lemoore City 
Council.  

  
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION - CDBG GRANT APPLICATION: 
 Planning Director Smyth read Resolution 2013-06 as revised during the Public 
 Hearing.  
 

It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Wynne and carried by Council to adopt Resolution 2013-06 to submit a CDBG 
application for the activities as read and with “Whereas Kings EDC is 
supportive of  a Planning Technical Assistance grant to review the potential for 
a small business incubator in addition to the restaurant incubator; and” added. 

  
 Ayes: Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Rodarmel, Siegel  

 
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR STATE ROUTE 198     
CORRIDOR PRESERVATION AND IMPROVEMENT STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 Project Manager Holwell presented an explanation for the letter of support to 
 Council. 
 
 It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
 Wynne and carried by Council to authorize the Mayor to sign the letter in     
 support of State Route 198 Corridor Preservation and Improvement Strategic 
 Plan. 
 
 Ayes:  Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Siegel 
   
CONCURRENT ADJOURNMENT TO CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION AND SPECIAL   
MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION: 
 At 7:24 p.m. City Council adjourned to Closed Session in the Veterans Hall 
 kitchen area regarding labor negotiations.  There was no announcement. 
 
 At 7:26 p.m. the Planning Commission adjourned to the Special Meeting of the 
 Planning Commission. 
 



 5

RECONSIDERATION OF SIGN VARIANCE #2012-03 APPLICATION BY DAVID ROSE FROM 
ELITE ACID FROM SECTION 9-5F-5-B1 AND 9-5F-5-B2 TO ALLOW FLEXIBILITY: 
 It was moved by Chairman Meade, seconded by Commissioner Monreal and 
 carried by the Commission to approve the adoption of revised Resolution 
 2012-19 as re-written and replace the original decision on the variance. 
 
 Ayes:  Meade, Monreal, Brown, Clement, Garcia, Martin, Wynne 
 
CONCURRENT ADJOURNMENT TO JOINT SPECIAL MEETING OF THE LEMOORE CITY 
COUNCIL AND LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION: 
 At 7:41 p.m. Council and Commissioners adjourned to the Joint Special    
 Meeting of the Lemoore City Council and Lemoore Planning Commission. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 William Munoz from the office of Assembly Member Rudy Salas submitted a 
 letter in support of Naval Air Station Lemoore – F-35C Lightening II Joint 
 Strike Fighter home base.  
 
DISCUSSION – 2012 ZONING CODE IMPLEMENTATION ADJUSTMENTS: 
 The Lemoore City Council and Lemoore Planning Commission agreed to form 
 two subcommittees.   
 
 Mayor Siegel appointed Commissioners Brown and Marvin with the assistance 
 of Planning Director Smyth and resident Michael Montabelo to the          
 Administrative Cleanup Ad Hoc Committee.  Commissioners Monreal and 
Wynne  with the assistance of Project Manager Holwell were appointed to the     
 Amendments to the Zoning Code Ad Hoc Committee.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 At 9:15 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 

 
Approved the 16th day of April, 2013. 
 
 
 

              
        William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 

       
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 



Item # 3C

























































































“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

             City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Maintenance &   Fleet 
Division 

 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6739 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

To: Lemoore City Council Item# 3D 

From: Joe Simonson, Director of Parks and Recreation  

Date: April 5, 2013  

Subject: Local Transportation Fund Share  

 
Background: 
The City has received the “Estimated Fiscal Year 2013-14” Transportation Development Act 
Shares from Kings County Association of Governments (KCAG) regarding Fiscal Year 2013-
14 Local Transportation Fund (LTF) Claims.  LTF shares are based on annual Department of 
Finance population estimates that will be released on May 1, 2013.  KCAG’s estimate of the 
City’s share of streets and roads, based upon the May 2012 population estimate of 24,835, is 
$553,550.  Minor adjustments will be made upon receipt of the final report and adoption of 
KCAG and KCAPTA budgets.  Attached is the Article 8 Claim Form for the Kings County 
procedural records to request Lemoore’s share of funds. 
 
KCAG also included an Article 3 Claim Form for Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities funding.  
However, this year, as in the past, none of the agencies will be requesting these funds to be 
separated from the general LTF shares.  This procedure allows all agencies to use these 
monies where needed and ties no strings for its uses.  Staff recommends that the City of 
Lemoore not request funds under Article 3. 
 
As part of the requirements to request funds under Article 8, the City must provide a list of 
those projects for which the funds will be used.  City Council authorized expenditures and 
design for 2013 Street Capital Improvement Projects at the March 19, 2013 Meeting.  The 
City will expend approximately $605,320 from Fund 033 for the 2013 Lemoore Slurry Seal 
Project. 
 
All agencies filing a claim for funds are required to hold a public hearing to determine if unmet 
transit needs exist within their jurisdiction.  The Kings County Area Public Transit Agency 
(KCAPTA) held public hearings on February 27, 2013 and March 27, 2013 on behalf of its 
member agencies. 
 
Budget Impact: 
Article 8 estimates indicate the City will receive $299,923 to be used for local streets and 
roads.  The remaining funds will go to KART and KCAG.  Local Transportation Fund 033 
revised estimated balance as of June 30, 2013 is projected to be $744,267. 
  
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that City Council: 

1. Approve the environmental documentation. 
2. By motion adopt Resolution 2013-07 making a determination regarding public transit 

needs and designating the City Manager to submit the TDA claim application including 
any needed amendments after the 2012 population figures are released. 



“In God We Trust” 

 
 

FINDINGS REQUIRED BY PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE 
CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 8, SECTION 99400 

 
1. The total expenditure for the coming Fiscal Year for projects of maintenance 

and construction are twice the allocation requested. 

2. See Attached City of Lemoore Recommended 2013 Lemoore Slurry Seals 
Project. 

3. The funds will be expended only for purposes necessary and convenient to the 
development, construction and maintenance of local streets and roads, 
including planning and contributions to the transportation planning process. 

4. See attached Notice of Exemption. 

5. The funds requested do not exceed, as a proportion of the total fund, the ratio 
the population served by the City of Lemoore bears to the total county 
population. 

6. See attached Notice of Hearing and Affidavit of Publication. 



CITY OF LEMOORE 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION NO. 2013-02 

 
 
 
TO: County Clerk    FROM: City of Lemoore 
 County of Kings     City Clerk 
 Kings County Government Center   119 Fox Street 
 Hanford, CA  93230     Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 
 
Project Title – Application for Local Transportation Funds for use in public 
transportation and maintenance of existing streets and roads. 
 
Project Location – Specific – Various streets within the City. 
 
Project Location – City and County – City of Lemoore, County of Kings 
 
Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project – Application for funds to 
fund the Kings County Rural Transportation Agency Program and to reconstruct existing 
City Streets for the benefit of vehicular traffic. 
 
Name of Agency Approving Project – City of Lemoore 
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project – City of Lemoore 
 
Exempt Status: (Check One) 
________ Ministerial – Section 15073 
________ Declared Emergency – Section 15071 (a) 
________ Emergency Project – Section 15071 (b) and (c) 
___X____ Categorical Exemption – Section 15301 (c) and 15302 (c) 
 
Project will not result in an expansion or intensification of use of streets.  Streets are 
receiving surface repair. 
 
    Jeff Laws      (559) 924-6700 
Contact Person     Telephone No. 
 
If filed by applicant: 
 

1. Attach certified document of exemption finding. 
2. Has the Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency 

approving the Project? Yes     X___   No _______ 
 
Date:  __________________   ____________________________________ 
      Jeff Laws 
 



ATTACHMENT “B” 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013 – 07 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE MAKING A 
DETERMINATION REGARDING PUBLIC TRANSIT NEEDS WITH THE CITY OF 

LEMOORE AND DESIGNATING A RESPONSIBLE PERSON TO SUBMIT A CLAIM 
APPLICATION FOR TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2013-14 
 

 
 At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 

April 16, 2013 at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member _________________, 

seconded by Council Member __________________ and carried that the following Resolution 

be adopted: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore has participated with the Kings County Area Public 
Transit Agency (KCAPTA) to provide a Public Transportation Program for the City of Lemoore; 
and 

 WHEREAS, KCAPTA is currently providing the City of Lemoore with a modified fixed 
route bus system; and 

 WHEREAS, KCAPTA and the Kings County Commission on Aging are consolidated 
into a single public transportation entity; and 

 WHEREAS, The City Council, at its April 16, 2013 Meeting, requested public comment 
regarding unmet transit needs; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on February 27, 2013 and another public hearing 
was held on March 27, 2013 by KCAPTA on behalf of its member agencies to determine if there 
exists unmet transit needs; and 

 WHEREAS, this joint effort is reflected through the Kings County Regional Planning 
Agency; and 

 WHEREAS, one of the functions of said Agency and its member agencies is to submit an 
approved Claim for Transportation Development Act Funds. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
hereby finds and determines based upon the testimony and evidence considered that there are no 
areas within its jurisdiction with unmet public transit needs which could be reasonably met by 
the expansion of the existing transportation system or by the establishment of a new system.  

 



 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore claims the 
unused balance of the Local Transportation Fund, not used for public transportation, for 
maintenance of local streets and roads, and finds that maintenance of streets and roads is 
categorically exempt from environmental review. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Lemoore City Manager is hereby designated as 
the authorized person to sign and submit the City of Lemoore’s request or amended request for 
the use of Transportation Development Act Funds. 

 Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held 
on the 16th day of April, 2013 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS )   ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE )  
 
 I, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the foregoing 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and adopted at a Regular 
Meeting of the City Council held on April 16, 2013. 
 
DATED:  April _____, 2013 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Kristie R. Baley 
      City Clerk  
 



 
 

                               ATTACHMENT "C"  
    
    
    

         CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT 
    

     
    

C.I.P. Description/Project No. Project Cost    2013 
    
 Street Slurry Seals Project    $           605,320   $         605,320 
       
    
    
     
  TOTAL  $             605,320   $           605,320  
        
    
    
     

 



 
 
 

MEMO 
 

 
L:\Projects\2012\L120030\CORRESPONDENCE\SENT\2013-04-09 memo ISS change.docx 

 
5110 West Cypress Avenue  �  P.O. Box 3699  �  Visalia, California 93278  �  Tel (559) 733-0440  �  Fax (559) 733-7821 

www.quadknopf.com 

 
Date: April 10, 2013 Item No.:   
 
To: Lemoore City Council 
 City of Lemoore 
 119 Fox Street 
 Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
From: Harry A. Tow, City Engineer 
 David Jacobs, Assistant City Engineer 
 
Subject: Authorization of changes to the 2012 Double Chip Seal Project 
 
cc: City Manager 
 Joe Simonson, Director, Parks and Recreation Department 
 Ray Greenlee, Parks and Facilities Superintendent 
 David Wlaschin, Public Works Director 
 
 
Discussion: 
 
The 2012 Double Chip Seal project was awarded to International Surfacing Systems on August 21, 
2012. The project was approximately halfway completed when it was decided the weather was too 
unpredictable and cold to properly complete the project. The project was put on hold October 23, 
2012 and was planned to resume in April or May, 2013. 
 
The city has received negative comments on the finished surface from residents living on the streets 
that were chip sealed in 2012. In order to get a smoother product on the remaining streets a Cape seal 
was proposed. (A Cape seal is a single chip surface followed by a slurry seal.)  Despite earlier lower-
cost estimates from the contractor, the final estimate of change in cost for the Cape seal was an 
addition of $163,000 to the original contract price of $777,900. This cost is excessive.  The 
contractor has, however, quoted a reasonable cost of $2.10 per square yard for a slurry seal, plus 
a lump sum cost of $20,000 for pre-seal crack filling.   This does not add any strength to the 
street but does give it a smooth surface that will hold up for four to five years. 
 
The crack fill/slurry seal alternative will reduce the overall project cost by $92,000 from 
$777,900 to $685,797. This amount includes 10,000 square yards ($21,000) to slurry seal cul-de-
sacs where the majority of complaints about chip-seal roughness occurred. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The change of scope in the project to crack fill and slurry seal the remaining streets in the 2012 
Double Chip Seal Project, including $21,000 to slurry seal the cul-de-sacs that have already been 
chipped, is recommended.  The work will be done in April or May. 

3E



Item 3F





 
 
 

MEMO 
 

 
L:\Projects\2013\L130063\CORRESPONDENCE\SENT\2013-04-11 Memo to Council re authorize to advertise.docx 

 
5110 West Cypress Avenue  �  P.O. Box 3699  �  Visalia, California 93278  �  Tel (559) 733-0440  �  Fax (559) 733-7821 

www.quadknopf.com 

 
 
Date: April 11, 2013 Project No.: L130063/01 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 City of Lemoore 
 
From: Harry A. Tow, City Engineer 
 David Jacobs, Assistant City Engineer 
 
Subject: Authorization to advertise for bids, 
 2013 Streets Overlay Program* 
 
cc: Jeff Laws, City Manager 
 Joe Simonson, Director, Parks and Recreation Department, City of Lemoore 
  
 
 
It is requested that the City Engineer be authorized to advertise for bids for this project. 
 

� Bid documents have been completed. 

� The estimated contract cost is $1,060,000 (The preliminary street program cost estimate 
was $1,310,800) 

� The streets to be overlayed are shown on the attached map. 

� Bids are scheduled to be opened on May 14; Council consideration of bid award is 
scheduled for May 21; work is scheduled to be completed between June 4 and June 29. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
* Overlay – The addition of approximately .2 feet (2 ½”) of asphaltic concrete to an existing street surface. It is 
normally accompanied by ‘cold planing’ (cutting out) of up to 2 ½” of existing asphalt about eight feet adjacent to 
concrete gutters and by ‘Petromat’ installation (a flexible sheeting) under the pavement of the roadway to reduce 
reflection cracking.  Its anticipated service life may be 15 to 20 years. 

Item 3G





 
 
 

MEMO 
 

 

L:\Projects\2013\L130063\CORRESPONDENCE\SENT\2013-04-12 Memo to Council.docx 
 

5110 West Cypress Avenue    P.O. Box 3699    Visalia, California 93278    Tel (559) 733-0440    Fax (559) 733-7821 
www.quadknopf.com 

 
 
Date: April 12, 2013 Project No.: L130063/01 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 City of Lemoore 
 
From: Harry A. Tow, City Engineer 
 David Jacobs, Assistant City Engineer 
 
Subject: Updated costs for, 
 2013 Streets Overlay Program

* 
 
cc: Jeff Laws, City Manager 
 Joe Simonson, Director, Parks and Recreation Department, City of Lemoore 
  
 

 

The project cost estimate that was provided to the City Council in a memo dated April 12, 2013 

was incomplete. The cost of the construction of Cedar Lane between 19½ Avenue and Blue Jay 

Avenue was inadvertently left off. 

 

It is proposed to construct the center 30 feet of Cedar Lane from 19½ Avenue to just west of 

Blue Jay Avenue. The recommended 2013 Street Program broke down the Cedar Lane Avenue 

extension separately; however it was decided to construct this section with the Overlay program. 

The following is the breakdown of each portion of the project: 

 

 The estimated overlay contract cost is $1,060,000  

 The estimated Cedar Avenue Extension is $58,700 (preliminarily estimated at $94,000)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
*
 Overlay – The addition of approximately .2 feet (2 ½”) of asphaltic concrete to an existing street surface. It is 

normally accompanied by ‘cold planing’ (cutting out) of up to 2 ½” of existing asphalt about eight feet adjacent to 

concrete gutters and by ‘Petromat’ installation (a flexible sheeting) under the pavement of the roadway to reduce 

reflection cracking.  Its anticipated service life may be 15 to 20 years. 



“In God We Trust” 
C:\Documents and Settings\baustin\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLK45\2012 Annual Housing Element Report CC Memo.doc 

 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

 
                        CITY of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Councilmembers 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel CALIFORNIA 

PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT 

 
711 Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6740 
FAX    (559) 924-6708 

 STAFF REPORT  
 

To: Lemoore City Council ITEM   # 3H 
From: Holly Smyth, Planning Director  
Date: April 12, 2013  

Subject: 2012 Annual Housing Element and Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation Progress Report  

 
Background: 
 
Government Code Section 65400(b)(1) mandates that all cities and counties submit to their legislative bodies an 
annual report on the status of the general plan and progress in its implementation (the “Progress Report”).  A copy of 
this Progress Report must also be sent to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and the 
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD). 
 
The intent of this statute is to ensure that the general plan directs all land use decisions and remains an effective 
guide for future development.  Because the role of the general plan is to act as a “constitution” for the long-term 
physical development of a community and because it is required to be updated periodically to reflect current 
circumstances, it is critical that local planning agencies periodically review the general plan and its implementation.  
The Progress Report is a tool for monitoring this. 
 
The Progress Report is useful to OPR in a number of ways.  The report provides information that allows OPR to 
monitor local planning activities and to identify trends in land use planning and decision making throughout the State 
of California.  This information is critical to OPR to serve in its capacity as the statewide planning agency. 
 
Due to staffing limitations and the Council’s prior direction to avoid carrying out lengthy unfunded mandates, staff has 
only pulled together the Housing Element and the Regional Housing Needs assessment portions of the report as the 
legislation states that failure to submit this portion of the report will lead to a court potentially issuing an order or 
judment compelling compliance with this section and possible sanctions.  Additionally, not submitting the reports 
could potentially threathen the awarding of State grant funds.  Please note that bolded items represent tasks carried 
out in the 2012 year towards carrying out the policies.   
 
Note that many policies state RDA is the responsible entity because this is how the Housing Element polcies are 
written.  Because we have a joint Countywide Housing Element certified by the state, the policies are not anticipated 
to be updated until the 2014/15 fiscal year when the Element must be updated and re-certified by the State.  There 
were still some housing activities that were going on during 2012 if other grant funding sources were available to pay 
for the activities. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Failure to submit the Housing Element portion of the Annual Progress Report can result in court/attorney/sanction 
costs as well as preclude the City from applying for Housing Related Parks Program or potentially jeopardize other 
State awarded grant funds. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The City Council should, by motion, accept the attached 2012 Housing Element and Regional Housing Needs 
Assesment Reports and direct staff to submit to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research and the Housing 
Community Development Department in accordance with Government Code Section 65400(b)(1). 



2012 LEMOORE HOUSING ELEMENT SECTION OF THE GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM/POLICIES RESPONSIBILITY TIME FRAME STATUS 

 

Y:\Clerk\Agenda\City Council\2012-2013\4-16-13\Item 3H-2 - 2012 Housing Element Annual Report.doc Page 1 of 5 

Policy 4.1 - Code Enforcement: Continue to work 
with the community on code violations.  Refer 
property owners to City programs for rehabilitation 
assistance. 

Code 
Enforcement 
Staff, and 
Police, 
Planning, 
Department 

-Ongoing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

-Since 1999 the Police Department has carried out code 
enforcement activity through a community service officer 
in coordination with Planning and Fire Departments. 
-Full time code enforcement officer hired under the 
Redevelopment Agency February 2006 to fully dedicate 
time to this activity and coordinate with PD and Fire 
Departments regularly and Planning and Building when 
needed.  
 2008 2009   2010    2011    2012   
Prop. Maintenance 1,092 1,125  1,716    1,298   1,196 
Vehicle Violations 300 209      218       141      155 
Zoning Violations 38 7         23           1          2 
Business License 19 23        10          15       13 
Public Nuisance  1,149 957   1,103       571     487 
(Sign/Banner Violations &  Shopping Carts)  
Substandard Housing 5 15           5          8         4 
-Code enforcement referred applicants to City’s housing 
or façade programs when applicable. 
 

Policy 4.2 - Exterior Home Improvement  
(Paint-Up/Fix-Up) Program:  Assist 10-15 
households annually with grant amounts up to 
$8,000.  

Former RDA All RDA 
funded 
programs 
were put on 
hold 6/29/2011 
with AB 1X 26; 
RDA was 
subsequently 
eliminated and 
program 
ended. 

-2003 calendar yr assisted 25 for $111,207 
-2004 calendar yr assisted 19 for $86,314 
-2005 assisted 18 at cost of $122,329 
-Raised max. grant from $5,000 to $8,000 FY 05/06 
-2006 assisted 36 at cost of $247,966 
-2007 assisted 11 at costs of $82,509 
-2008 assisted 11 at costs of $67,805 
-2009 assisted 14 at a cost of $99,274 
-2010 assisted 20 at a cost of $139,126 
-2011 assisted 6 at a cost of $45,380 
-2012 none assisted; program ended 

Policy 4.3 - Housing Rehabilitation Program:  Initiate 
housing rehabilitation program and assist 
households during the grant cycle based on 
available funding. 

City Housing 
Specialist 

-2003-2006 
-2010  
-Awarded new 
grant, program 
began in 2012; 
additional grant 
funds received 
2013. 

Assisted eight (8) households during the grant cycle – six 
with rehabilitation loans of $20,000 - $70,000 and two 
reconstructions of $110,000-$116,000, utilizing a total of 
$508,127 of funds. 
- Anticipate assisting three to five households with new 

grant funding 
Currently have not received any applications for 
assistance 



2012 LEMOORE HOUSING ELEMENT SECTION OF THE GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM/POLICIES RESPONSIBILITY TIME FRAME STATUS 

 

Y:\Clerk\Agenda\City Council\2012-2013\4-16-13\Item 3H-2 - 2012 Housing Element Annual Report.doc Page 2 of 5 

 

Policy 4.4 - Emergency Home Repair Program:  
Assist up to 10 households annually with grant 
amounts up to $2,500. 

Former RDA All RDA funded 
programs were 
put on hold 
6/29/2011 with 
AB 1X 26; 
RDA was 
subsequently 
eliminated and 
program ended. 

-2009 assisted 1 at a cost of $488. 
-2010 assisted 6 at a cost of $13,455 
-2011 assisted 2 at a cost of $4,925 
-2012 none assisted; program ended 

Policy 4.5 - Do-It-Yourself and Senior House 
Painting Programs:  Assist up to 20-30 households 
annually to paint their homes. 

Former RDA All RDA funded 
programs were 
put on hold 
6/29/2011 with 
AB 1X 26; 
RDA was 
subsequently 
eliminated and 
program ended. 

-2009 assisted 8 at a cost of $20,000, plus $9,000 in start-
up costs through the Senior Paint Program 
-2010 assisted 1 at a cost of $703 through the Do-It-
Yourself Program & assisted 5 at a cost of $12,500 through 
the Senior Paint Program 
-2011 assisted 2 at a cost of $5,000, plus $8,000 in start-up 
costs though the Senior Paint Program 
-2012 none assisted; program ended 

Policy 4.6 - Preservation of At-Risk Affordable 
Housing: Continue to monitor the status of publicly-
assisted units.  The city will contact the property 
owners to determine their intentions, contact qualified 
nonprofits regarding potential opt-out projects, ensure 
that property owners comply with noticing 
requirements, support the acquisition of at-risk 
properties by nonprofits, and pursue grants to support 
the preservation of affordable at-risk housing. 

Formerly the 
RDA 

Ongoing -The 2009-2014 Housing Element identified one project at 
risk of converting to market rents in the next ten years.  The 
Redevelopment Agency previously monitored this situation. 

Policy 4.7 - Zoning for Adequate Sites:  Provide 
adequate sites to meet the housing needs allocation 
of 3,021 units. 

Planning 
Department 

-2008 
-2009/10 
 
-2012 

-Adequate sites included in current General Plan. 
-2009-2014 Housing Element accessed General Plan 
designated lands which meet the new RHNA. 
-Zoning Ordinance was updated and did meet the RHNA 
allocation 

Policy 4.8 - Downtown Revitalization:  Facilitate 
additional mixed-use projects in the downtown as 
opportunities arise. 
 
 
 

Former RDA Ongoing -No new mixed used projects, that include housing,  
have been done since the Antlers Hotel projects in 
downtown in 2004. 
-2030 General Plan update changed downtown to several 
“Mixed-Use” designations to encourage policy. 
 



2012 LEMOORE HOUSING ELEMENT SECTION OF THE GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM/POLICIES RESPONSIBILITY TIME FRAME STATUS 

 

Y:\Clerk\Agenda\City Council\2012-2013\4-16-13\Item 3H-2 - 2012 Housing Element Annual Report.doc Page 3 of 5 

 
Policy 4.8 (cont.) 

 
-4/11/2013 submitted a CDBG Planning Technical 
Assistance grant application to consider a restaurant 
business incubator using locally grown produce in 
Downtown that may help continue revitalization efforts. 
 

Policy 4.9 - Density Bonus Program:  Update the 
City’s density bonus ordinance and continue to offer 
a density bonus and other incentives for qualified 
projects. 

Planning 
Department 

-2005 
 
 
-2009 
 
 
 
-2012 

-Eastgate Village project approved a 25% PUD density 
bonus from 118 units to 147 (allowing 15 additional units) in 
2005.  
-Montgomery Crossings project approved an 8% Density 
Bonus from 53 allowed units to 57 units (17*3.13 acres= 53 
allowed units) for affordable housing project which was 
completed in 2009. 
-The City’s density bonus was updated with the 
adoption of the 2012 Zoning Ordinance overhaul  
 

Policy 4.10 - Planned Unit Development:  Continue 
to promote the benefits of PUD alternatives to 
traditional development. 

Planning 
Department 

-Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
-2012 

-All new residential single family subdivisions over 10 acres 
in size and multi-family over 5 acres in size all zoned with a 
PUD overlay requiring small and larger house sizes. 
-Have made PUD Livable Neighborhood booklet and PUD 
short list available for free at the counter for those 
considering PUD. 
-2012 Zoning Ordinance updated the PUD section  
 

Policy 4.11 - First Time Homebuyer Programs:  
Assist 20 households annually through the City’s 
two First Time Homebuyer Programs with grant 
amounts ranging from $30,000 to $100,000. 
 
- Maximum grant amount for HOME Program 
reduced to $75,000 for new grant cycle 

Former 
RDA; City 
Housing 
Specialist for 
Grant 
funded 
programs 

All RDA 
funded 
programs 
were put on 
hold 6/29/2011 
with AB 1X 26 
and ended 
with the 
elimination of 
redevelopment 
Grant funded 
programs are 
ongoing. 

-2003 assisted 4 at cost of $79,300 total with HOME funds 
-2004 assisted 1 at cost of $29,927 total with HOME funds 
-2005 assisted 1 at cost of $20,000 total with HOME funds 
-2006 assisted 22 at cost of $444,727 with RDA funds 
-2007 assisted 10 at cost of $298,021 with RDA funds 
-2008 assisted 19 at cost of $ 559,696 with RDA funds 
-2009 assisted 12 at cost of $338,049 with RDA funds 
-2009 assisted 12 at a cost of $866,422 with HOME funds 
-2010 assisted 13 at a cost of $365,621 with RDA funds 
-2010 assisted 2 at a cost of $112,884 with HOME funds 
-2011 assisted 1 at a cost of $26,897 with RDA funds 
-2011 assisted 5 at a cost of $327,820 with HOME funds 
-2012 assisted 1 at a cost of $52,255 with HOME funds 
 



2012 LEMOORE HOUSING ELEMENT SECTION OF THE GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM/POLICIES RESPONSIBILITY TIME FRAME STATUS 

 

Y:\Clerk\Agenda\City Council\2012-2013\4-16-13\Item 3H-2 - 2012 Housing Element Annual Report.doc Page 4 of 5 

Policy 4.12 - Infill Housing Program:  Assist 1 to 2 
households annually by constructing infill homes for 
low to moderate income households. 

Former RDA 
 

Ended wit the 
elimination of 
redevelopment

-Two infill homes were constructed and sold to income 
qualified families in the 2009 calendar yr at a cost of 
$363,378. 

Policy 4.13 - Section 8 Rental Assistance:  Assist 
the Housing Authority in promoting the Section 8 
program. 

RDA / Kings 
County 
Housing 
Authority 

Ongoing -The City does not offer rental assistance so we refer people 
to Housing Authority who administers the Section 8 Program 
for Kings County, as well as, other rental assistance 
programs. 
 

Policy 4.14 - Affordable Housing Project Assistance:  
Assist affordable housing projects on a case-by-
case basis, including priority for extremely-low 
income units where feasible. 

Former RDA As funding is 
available 

-The RDA contributed $1,200,000 to an affordable multi-
family project of 57 units that was completed in 2008. 
- All prior commitments expired with the elimination of 
redevelopment. 
-Maps are provided to potential developers both in the office 
and on the website showing vacant multi-family housing 
sites. 
 

Policy 4.15 - Senior and Special Needs Housing:  
Continue to support the development of 
senior/disabled/assisted living housing. 

Former RDA -2011 -The RDA contributed $2,680,000 to develop a new 
senior housing project that provides 80 units.  The City 
also obtained a CDBG grant to further support this 
project.  This project was completed in 2012, and rented 
up within 30 days of opening.  
 

Policy 4.16 - Emergency Shelters and 
Transitional/Supportive Housing:  Amend Zoning 
Code to permit emergency shelters by-right in the 
RSC zone subject to objective development 
standards and clarify that transitional and supportive 
housing are residential uses subject only to the 
same requirements as other residential uses of the 
same type in the same zone. 

Planning 
Department 

-2008 
 
2012 

-2030 General Plan update included this policy 
 
-Zoning Ordinance updated these provisions 

Policy 4.17  Employee and Farmworker Housing:  
1) Assist interested affordable housing developers 

by identifying sites and supporting funding 
applications for farmworker housing, and  

2) Provide, to the extent feasible, regulatory 
incentives to encourage the construction of 
farmworker housing. 

Planning 
Department 
and Former 
RDA 

-2009 
 
 
-Ongoing 
 
-2012 

-2009-2014 Housing Element incorporated a vacant 
residential land inventory available on Figure B-1d in 
Appendix B of the document. 
-The RDA has purchased land for an affordable multi-family 
complex that would have provided 39 units of farmworker 
housing; however, this project was not able to secure 
funding needed to complete project. 
-Zoning Ordinance incorporated policies 



2012 LEMOORE HOUSING ELEMENT SECTION OF THE GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM/POLICIES RESPONSIBILITY TIME FRAME STATUS 

 

Y:\Clerk\Agenda\City Council\2012-2013\4-16-13\Item 3H-2 - 2012 Housing Element Annual Report.doc Page 5 of 5 

Policy 4.18 - Housing for Persons with Disabilities 
and Special Needs:  Amend the Zoning Ordinance 
to remove potential constraints on community care 
facilities, housing for persons with disabilities and 
SROs, and amend the definition of “family” 
consistent with current law.  
 

Planning / 
CDD 

-2012 
-Ongoing 

-2012 Zoning Ordinance Update incorporated 
-The City continues to operate a transitional home for low to 
moderate income young adults, including aged-out foster 
youth. 

Policy 4.19 - Promote Equal Housing Opportunities:  
Lemoore will coordinate with Kings County to select 
a local fair housing agency to provide 
landlord/tenant mediation, fair housing 
investigations, and testing.  The City will develop a 
fair housing brochure in Spanish and English or 
acquire one from a local fair housing provider.  To 
broadly disseminate fair housing information, the 
City will distribute the brochure at City Hall and on 
the City website. 
 

City Housing 
Specialist 

Select a local 
provider by 
2010 

-A joint local provider has not been selected yet; however, 
any complaints are referred to the Fresno HUD office and 
Central California Legal Services. 
-A Fair Housing Brochure and a Tenant/Landlord Rights 
Brochure have been placed on the City website.  These 
brochures are also available, by request, in print at City Hall. 

 
 
Report continues on portrait view pages that follow regarding the Regional Housing Needs Assessment evaluation. 
 



Y:\Clerk\Agenda\City Council\2012-2013\4-16-13\Item 3H-3 - 2012 Housing Element - RHNA Annual Report.doc  

2012 LEMOORE GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 
in meeting Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) 

 

The City is required to file a report annually with the State Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) on progress in meeting goals and objectives of the 2009-2014 Housing 
Element of the General Plan.   
 

This report includes an update on progress in meeting the City’s RHNA as stated in the Housing 
Element (which covers January 2007 to June 2014 period) while the City’s Annual Report on the 
Housing Element of the General Plan discusses a program-by-program assessment of the Housing 
Element’s effectiveness in addressing the City’s housing goals and objectives. 
 

This report includes the new housing construction activity for the period from January 1 2007 
through December 31, 2012 as well as the maximum income limits each year for a 4-person 
household size. 

 

From To Extremely 
Low 

Very-Low 
Income 

Low-
Income 

Moderate 
Income 

Above 
Moderate 

Total New 
Homes 

RHNA Units Assigned 374 374 534 502 1,237 3,021 
(percentage of total) 12% 12% 18% 17% 41% 100% 

        
1/1/2007 12/31/2007 $15,450 $25,750 $41,200 $61,800 N/A  

*  0 0 4 14 90 108 
1/1/2008 12/31/2008 $16,150 $26,900 $43,050 $64,600 N/A  

**  2 19 116 6 54 197 
1/1/2009 12/31/2009 $16,750 $27,900 $44,650 $66,950 N/A  

*  1 0 1 3 24 29 
1/1/2010 12/31/2010 $16,900 $28,150 $45,050 $67,550 N/A  

  0 0 1 4 6 11 
1/1/2011 12/31/2011 $17,150 $28,600 $45,750 $68,650 N/A  

***  6 33 40 28 2 109 
1/1/2012 12/31/2012 $65,200 $124,250 $198,750 $298,300 N/A  

  0 0 21 74 4 99 
1/1/2013 12/31/2013       

        
1/1/2014 12/31/2014       

        
TOTAL 
UNITS  9 52 183 129 180 553 

% of total 
housing built  1.63% 9.40% 33.09% 23.33% 32.55% 100% 

% of RHNA 
Number meet  2.41% 13.9% 34.26% 25.69% 14.55%  

RHNA 
Remaining  365 322 351 373 1,057 2,468 

 
*  Used pulled building permit data, sorted new housing units, inserted actual purchase price or estimated 

purchase price, then compared the house prices with the maximum purchase price a particular income group 
could afford  

** Includes 73 Valley Oak apartments (these qualify as low-income under RHNA but not under RDA, because a 
“low-income” family could afford the units however they are not income restricted units with covenants)  and  57 
Montgomery Crossing apartments. 

*** Includes 80 Cinnamon Villas apartments 
 



Y:\Clerk\Agenda\City Council\2012-2013\4-16-13\Item 3H-3 - 2012 Housing Element - RHNA Annual Report.doc  

According to the findings in the Housing Element, the City had 713 vacant parcels, 27 underutilized 
sites, and 62 parcels within the Urban Growth Boundary Area outside City limits that could support 
new housing.  Table 3-6 of the new Housing Element specifies the amount of housing capacity in 
each residentially designated area within the City Limits.   
 
Substantially undeveloped and vacant parcels with multi-family or mixed-use land-use designations 
could accommodate 1,571 units, which could serve extremely-low, very-low and low-income 
households.  Substantially undeveloped and vacant parcels with single-family land-use 
designations could accommodate 2,581 units, which would most likely serve moderate and above 
moderate income households.  Based on this information, the amount of land required to achieve 
the housing allocation goals for development applications was sufficient at the time the Housing 
Element was adopted to accomplish the Housing Element target goal of 3,021 units by 2014.  
However, based on the approximatly, 200 housing units constructed during “good” 
building/development years, it is anticipated that no more than 1,400 new housing units will be built 
between 2007 to 2014 Regional Housing Needs Assessment period (given the housing slump 
these numbers will be far fewer).  Therefore, the City should strive to meet the type of housing 
units by their proportional percentage highlighted on the above sheet. 
 
During the Comprenhensive Zoning & Development Code Update (effective May 18, 2012), City 
staff recalculated the overall amount of residentially zoned undeveloped and under-developed land 
available for various types of housing and insured that adequate sites are provided to 
accommodate all income households as required by the RHNA.   
 
 
 
 
THIS 2012 ANNUAL REPORT/ASSESSMENT OF THE HOUSING ELEMENT POLICIES OF THE 
GENERAL PLAN AND REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT REPORT WAS 
REVIEWED AND ADOPTED BY THE LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL ON TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 
2013.  THE REMAINDER OF THE GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2012, WILL BE 
SUBMITTED UNDER SEPERATE COVER. 
 
 
 
         
Mayor, William M. Siegel, Jr. 
 
 
 
       
Dated 
 
 



In God We Trust 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                            City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel  
 

CALIFORNIA 

Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

 Staff Report 
 

Item # 4 

To: Lemoore City Council 
From: Lauren Apone, Administrative Analyst 
Date: April 11, 2013 
Subject: Public Hearing - Chevron Energy Solutions Solar Project -  

Energy Service Contract – Incurrence of Debt  
 
Discussion: 
 
The Chevron Energy Solutions solar proposal has been discussed at length at previous 
Council meetings.  Links to all of the staff reports in date order are below.  We are not 
planning on reviewing the entire scope of the project again unless Council has any 
questions or concerns. 
http://www.lemoore.com/agendas/2012/sep18/data/9_18_12_item_5_1.pdf 
http://www.lemoore.com/agendas/2012/oct2/data/10_2_12_item_6_1.pdf 
http://www.lemoore.com/agendas/2013/mar19/data/3_19_13_ss_item_2.pdf 
http://www.lemoore.com/agendas/2013/apr2/data/4_2_13_ss_item_2.pdf 
   
Scope Changes: 
There have been a few changes to the scope of the project since our last Council 
Meeting.  The Mayor has requested the following changes be made to the project.  The 
watertight aspect of the solar shade structure added during the last meeting has been 
removed due to the high price tag of $50,000.  The additional inverter warranty 
(increasing the warranty from 15 years to 20 years) we previously spoke about 
purchasing has been removed to save approximately $80,000.  Chevron has also 
reduced their price by an additional $30,000 in addition to the $200,000 reduction they 
made just prior to the last Council Meeting.  The price of the entire project is now 
$12,890,000. 
 
In addition, staff has worked with the Blair, Church, and Flynn, the engineer for the 
Canal Project and CMC parking lot in order to determine how the parking lot will 
function with the existing canal remaining above ground until 2015, when our grant 
funds for the canal project are available.  A drawing is attached.   
 
The limiting factors are the existing location of the canal and the existing entrance off of 
Cinnamon Drive.  The new parking lot will have 144 usable stalls and will only have one 
entrance until 2015.  An additional 15 stalls are available but will not be striped as such 
until the new entrances are added.  Until the canal can be relocated underground, the 
traffic will need to be temporarily diverted with delineators to the southeast corner of the 
parking lot in order to avoid traffic conflicts.  Once the canal is underground, we can 
simply restripe to gain 15 more parking stalls and, if desired, add additional asphalt to 



In God We Trust 

gain an additional 33 stalls.  All grading and plans for this parking lot will be completed 
with this expansion in mind. 
 
Funding: 
 
Staff has extensively analyzed the funding options and is recommending a 15-year 
Lease Purchase arrangement that has been discussed previously.  Chevron has 
secured financing for this project at 2.97% as previously discussed.  This will be a bank 
qualified bond.  Bank qualified bonds require that the City issue no more than $10 
million in tax exempt securities in a calendar year in exchange for a lower interest rate.  
After speaking with the Finance Director, there is no immediate need to issue debt in 
the remainder of this calendar year. 
 
The total project cost is $12,890,000.  The following is the breakdown of the money 
needed for the projects from each fund and the fund balances, along with any surpluses 
or shortfalls that need addressing. 
 
Fund  Project Cost  Fund Balance (6/30/13)  Shortage/Surplus 
Water  $9,783,053  Operating:    $512,780  ($9,462,884) 
Sewer  $2,483,695  Operating:  $2,209,460     ($323,534) 
General $   623,252  Operating: $5,134,348    $4,498,825  
 
Suggested Funds to borrow from if Council desires: 
WWTP Set Aside     $4,475,869      
General Fund Operating     $4,498,825 
 
Staff recommends that Council use the available operating balances in the Sewer and 
General Funds to fund those portions of the project.  This will ensure that the project 
cost to be financed stays below the required $10 million.  Additionally, staff 
recommends that Council consider borrowing from the WWTP Set Aside fund and/or 
General Fund to further reduce the amount the City needs to finance for this project.  
The balances in these funds are currently earning very little interest (0.3%) and even 
though we have secured a very attractive interest rate for the financing, the interest we 
are earning is still less than the interest we would be paying.  If the Council wishes to 
borrow from any other funds, a repayment schedule will be prepared to ensure these 
funds will be made whole. 
 
A representative from Chevron will not make a presentation on Tuesday evening but will 
be available to answer any questions Council may have.  We will again separate this 
project into Item A including all sites excluding Well 12, and Item B which is Well 12 only 
to accommodate for Mayor Pro Tem Wynne’s conflict with the Well 12 site.  The 
attachments are as follows: 
 

• Attachment 1: Proposed Parking Lot Layout 
• Attachment 2: Cash Flow Analysis – Item A 
• Attachment 3: Site by Site Analysis – Item A 
• Attachment 4: Cash Flow Analysis – Item B 
• Attachment 5: Site by Site Analysis – Item B 
• Attachment 6: Cash Flow Analysis – Entire Project (for discussion under Item B) 
• Attachment 7: Site by Site Analysis – Entire Project (for discussion under Item B) 

 



In God We Trust 

Two public hearings have been noticed for Tuesday evening.  One is for the approval of 
this project and the other for the incurrence of debt.  The approval of this project has 
been delayed at the advice of our City Attorney due to some CEQA requirements that 
have not yet been met.  Staff is not anticipating any problems with CEQA, but CEQA 
determinations must be made prior to the award of the project.  As such, we 
recommend that Council open the public hearings, accept testimony, and then continue 
the public hearings until the May 7, 2013 meeting when we anticipate the project will be 
ready for approval. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The price tag on the entire solar project is now $12,890,000.  $9,783,053 will be paid 
out of the Water Fund, $2,483,695 out of the Sewer Fund, and $623,252 out of the 
General Fund.  The savings over 30 years are expected to be $44.8 million to the above 
funds. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council should open the public hearings, accept testimony, and continue 
the public hearings until May 7, 2013.   





Project Price $11,690,568
Amount to be Financed $10,000,000
Construction Period Financing $223,342
Finance Term 15
Annual Interest Rate 2.97%
Annual Escalation of Electricity Cost 5.00%

Year

Utility
Cost

Avoidance

California
Solar

Incentive

Total 
Program 
Savings

Payment to 
Lessor

Measurement 
& Verification

O&M 
Services

Inverter 
Replacement 

Cost

Cash 
Contribution by 

City

Total 
Program 

Costs Net Savings
Year 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,890,000 $2,890,000 -$2,890,000
Year 1 $898,122 $330,731 $1,228,854 $746,248 $12,600 $44,479 $0 $0 $803,327 $425,527
Year 2 $938,313 $329,078 $1,267,391 $746,248 $12,978 $46,112 $0 $0 $805,338 $462,053
Year 3 $980,303 $327,432 $1,307,735 $746,248 $13,367 $47,824 $0 $0 $807,439 $500,297
Year 4 $1,024,172 $325,795 $1,349,967 $746,248 $13,768 $49,619 $0 $0 $809,636 $540,331
Year 5 $1,070,003 $324,166 $1,394,170 $746,248 $14,181 $51,505 $0 $0 $811,934 $582,235
Year 6 $1,117,886 $0 $1,117,886 $746,248 $0 $53,487 $0 $0 $799,735 $318,150
Year 7 $1,167,911 $0 $1,167,911 $746,248 $0 $55,572 $0 $0 $801,821 $366,091
Year 8 $1,220,175 $0 $1,220,175 $746,248 $0 $57,768 $0 $0 $804,017 $416,159
Year 9 $1,274,778 $0 $1,274,778 $746,248 $0 $60,083 $0 $0 $806,331 $468,447
Year 10 $1,331,824 $0 $1,331,824 $746,248 $0 $62,525 $0 $0 $808,773 $523,051
Year 11 $1,391,424 $0 $1,391,424 $746,248 $0 $48,241 $0 $0 $794,489 $596,934
Year 12 $1,453,690 $0 $1,453,690 $746,248 $0 $49,688 $0 $0 $795,937 $657,753
Year 13 $1,518,742 $0 $1,518,742 $746,248 $0 $51,179 $0 $0 $797,427 $721,315
Year 14 $1,586,706 $0 $1,586,706 $746,248 $0 $52,714 $0 $0 $798,963 $787,744
Year 15 $1,657,711 $0 $1,657,711 $746,248 $0 $54,296 $0 $0 $800,544 $857,167
Year 16 $1,731,894 $0 $1,731,894 $0 $0 $55,925 $0 $0 $55,925 $1,675,969
Year 17 $1,809,396 $0 $1,809,396 $0 $0 $57,602 $0 $0 $57,602 $1,751,794
Year 18 $1,890,367 $0 $1,890,367 $0 $0 $59,330 $0 $0 $59,330 $1,831,036
Year 19 $1,974,960 $0 $1,974,960 $0 $0 $61,110 $0 $0 $61,110 $1,913,850
Year 20 $2,063,340 $0 $2,063,340 $0 $0 $62,944 $0 $0 $62,944 $2,000,396
Year 21 $2,155,674 $0 $2,155,674 $0 $0 $64,832 $1,330,775 $0 $1,395,607 $760,067
Year 22 $2,252,141 $0 $2,252,141 $0 $0 $66,777 $0 $0 $66,777 $2,185,364
Year 23 $2,352,924 $0 $2,352,924 $0 $0 $68,780 $0 $0 $68,780 $2,284,144
Year 24 $2,458,217 $0 $2,458,217 $0 $0 $70,844 $0 $0 $70,844 $2,387,374
Year 25 $2,568,223 $0 $2,568,223 $0 $0 $72,969 $0 $0 $72,969 $2,495,254
Year 26 $2,683,151 $0 $2,683,151 $0 $0 $75,158 $0 $0 $75,158 $2,607,993
Year 27 $2,803,222 $0 $2,803,222 $0 $0 $77,413 $0 $0 $77,413 $2,725,809
Year 28 $2,928,666 $0 $2,928,666 $0 $0 $79,735 $0 $0 $79,735 $2,848,931
Year 29 $3,059,724 $0 $3,059,724 $0 $0 $82,127 $0 $0 $82,127 $2,977,596
Year 30 $3,196,646 $0 $3,196,646 $0 $0 $84,591 $0 $0 $84,591 $3,112,055
Totals $54,560,306 $1,637,203 $56,197,510 $11,193,723 $66,894 $1,825,231 $1,330,775 $2,890,000 $17,306,623 $38,890,886

City of Lemoore Solar Project - Item A
Cash Flow Analysis - 15 Year Tax Exempt Lease Purchase - Constant Lease Payments



No. Site/Well No. Location Description Design kWp Annual kWh Annual $ Avoided Annual O&M Cost Solar Incentive $ Price $ Payback
1 6 North Well Field 270.00 535,410 $116,371 $4,189 $233,236 $1,088,381 6.69
2 7 North of West Hills College 194.40 316,542 $74,451 $3,164 $137,893 $699,014 6.88
3 10 Well #10 Groundmount to Well #10 Meter 252.00 407,548 $65,473 $4,111 $177,537 $953,040 10.20
4 CMC CMC Parking Arrays to Well #10 Meter 269.40 409,219 $65,741 $4,997 $178,265 $1,806,149 17.87
5 10 Well #10 Groundmount to CMC Meter 86.40 139,536 $22,326 $1,528 $60,785 $306,995 9.67
6 11 Lemoore Ave & Glendale Avenue 259.20 420,902 $106,067 $4,460 $183,354 $909,681 6.33
8 13 East of West Hills College 216.00 349,370 $88,041 $3,512 $152,193 $741,334 6.19
9 4 North Well Site 792.00 1,570,536 $202,835 $10,701 $150,107 $3,136,314 12.02

10 PD Police Department 10.80 15,552 $2,939 $380 $6,775 $46,260 11.88
11 WWTP Meter 1 (Building) 162.00 321,100 $51,922 $2,850 $139,878 $780,829 10.47
12 WWTP Well No. 9 72.00 143,208 $32,931 $1,460 $62,385 $411,701 9.19
13 WWTP Meter 2 (adjacent to East Pond) 180.00 355,346 $69,026 $3,128 $154,797 $810,871 8.39

Total 2,764.20 4,984,268 $898,122 $44,479 $1,637,203 $11,690,568 9.64

City of Lemoore Solar Project - Item A
Project Summary Table



Project Price $1,199,432
Amount to be Financed $0
Construction Period Financing $30,439
Finance Term 15
Annual Interest Rate 2.97%
Annual Escalation of Electricity Cost 5.00%

Year

Utility
Cost

Avoidance

California
Solar

Incentive

Total 
Program 
Savings

Payment to 
Lessor

Measurement 
& Verification

O&M 
Services

Inverter 
Replacement 

Cost

Cash 
Contribution by 

City

Total 
Program 

Costs Net Savings
Year 1 $124,243 $49,117 $173,360 $101,706 $0 $4,490 $0 $0 $106,197 $67,163
Year 2 $129,803 $48,871 $178,674 $101,706 $0 $4,625 $0 $0 $106,331 $72,342
Year 3 $135,611 $48,627 $184,238 $101,706 $0 $4,764 $0 $0 $106,470 $77,768
Year 4 $141,680 $48,384 $190,064 $101,706 $0 $4,907 $0 $0 $106,613 $83,451
Year 5 $148,020 $48,142 $196,162 $101,706 $0 $5,054 $0 $0 $106,760 $89,402
Year 6 $154,644 $0 $154,644 $101,706 $0 $5,205 $0 $0 $106,912 $47,732
Year 7 $161,564 $0 $161,564 $101,706 $0 $5,362 $0 $0 $107,068 $54,496
Year 8 $168,794 $0 $168,794 $101,706 $0 $5,522 $0 $0 $107,229 $61,566
Year 9 $176,348 $0 $176,348 $101,706 $0 $5,688 $0 $0 $107,395 $68,953
Year 10 $184,240 $0 $184,240 $101,706 $0 $5,859 $0 $0 $107,565 $76,674
Year 11 $192,484 $0 $192,484 $101,706 $0 $6,035 $0 $0 $107,741 $84,743
Year 12 $201,098 $0 $201,098 $101,706 $0 $6,216 $0 $0 $107,922 $93,176
Year 13 $210,097 $0 $210,097 $101,706 $0 $6,402 $0 $0 $108,108 $101,989
Year 14 $219,499 $0 $219,499 $101,706 $0 $6,594 $0 $0 $108,300 $111,198
Year 15 $229,321 $0 $229,321 $101,706 $0 $6,792 $0 $0 $108,498 $120,823
Year 16 $239,584 $0 $239,584 $0 $0 $6,996 $0 $0 $6,996 $232,588
Year 17 $250,305 $0 $250,305 $0 $0 $7,206 $0 $0 $7,206 $243,099
Year 18 $261,506 $0 $261,506 $0 $0 $7,422 $0 $0 $7,422 $254,084
Year 19 $273,209 $0 $273,209 $0 $0 $7,644 $0 $0 $7,644 $265,564
Year 20 $285,435 $0 $285,435 $0 $0 $7,874 $0 $0 $7,874 $277,561
Year 21 $298,208 $0 $298,208 $0 $0 $8,110 $173,636 $0 $181,746 $116,462
Year 22 $311,553 $0 $311,553 $0 $0 $8,353 $0 $0 $8,353 $303,199
Year 23 $325,495 $0 $325,495 $0 $0 $8,604 $0 $0 $8,604 $316,891
Year 24 $340,060 $0 $340,060 $0 $0 $8,862 $0 $0 $8,862 $331,199
Year 25 $355,278 $0 $355,278 $0 $0 $9,128 $0 $0 $9,128 $346,150
Year 26 $371,177 $0 $371,177 $0 $0 $9,402 $0 $0 $9,402 $361,775
Year 27 $387,787 $0 $387,787 $0 $0 $9,684 $0 $0 $9,684 $378,103
Year 28 $405,141 $0 $405,141 $0 $0 $9,974 $0 $0 $9,974 $395,166
Year 29 $423,271 $0 $423,271 $0 $0 $10,273 $0 $0 $10,273 $412,997
Year 30 $442,212 $0 $442,212 $0 $0 $10,582 $0 $0 $10,582 $431,630
Totals $7,547,666 $243,140 $7,790,805 $1,525,595 $0 $213,627 $173,636 $0 $1,912,858 $5,877,947

City of Lemoore Solar Project - Item B
Cash Flow Analysis - 15 Year Tax Exempt Lease Purchase - Constant Lease Payments



No. Site/Well No. Location Description Design kWp Annual kWh Annual $ Avoided Annual O&M Cost Solar Incentive $ Price $ Payback
7 12 Cedar Lane & Bluejay Avenue 345.60 558,144 $124,243 $4,490 $243,140 $1,199,432 6.97

Total 345.60 558,144 $124,243 $4,490 $243,140 $1,199,432 6.97

City of Lemoore Solar Project - Item B
Project Summary Table



Project Price $12,890,000
Amount to be Financed $10,000,000
Construction Period Financing $253,781
Finance Term 15
Annual Interest Rate 2.97%
Annual Escalation of Electricity Cost 5.00%

Year

Utility
Cost

Avoidance

California
Solar

Incentive

Total 
Program 
Savings

Payment to 
Lessor

Measurement 
& Verification

O&M 
Services

Inverter 
Replacement 

Cost

Cash 
Contribution by 

City

Total 
Program 

Costs Net Savings
Year 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,890,000 $2,890,000 -$2,890,000
Year 1 $1,022,365 $379,848 $1,402,214 $847,955 $12,600 $48,969 $0 $0 $909,524 $492,690
Year 2 $1,068,116 $377,949 $1,446,065 $847,955 $12,978 $50,737 $0 $0 $911,669 $534,396
Year 3 $1,115,914 $376,059 $1,491,974 $847,955 $13,367 $52,587 $0 $0 $913,909 $578,065
Year 4 $1,165,852 $374,179 $1,540,030 $847,955 $13,768 $54,526 $0 $0 $916,249 $623,782
Year 5 $1,218,023 $372,308 $1,590,331 $847,955 $14,181 $56,559 $0 $0 $918,695 $671,637
Year 6 $1,272,530 $0 $1,272,530 $847,955 $0 $58,693 $0 $0 $906,647 $365,883
Year 7 $1,329,476 $0 $1,329,476 $847,955 $0 $60,934 $0 $0 $908,889 $420,587
Year 8 $1,388,970 $0 $1,388,970 $847,955 $0 $63,291 $0 $0 $911,245 $477,724
Year 9 $1,451,126 $0 $1,451,126 $847,955 $0 $65,771 $0 $0 $913,726 $537,400
Year 10 $1,516,064 $0 $1,516,064 $847,955 $0 $68,384 $0 $0 $916,338 $599,726
Year 11 $1,583,908 $0 $1,583,908 $847,955 $0 $54,276 $0 $0 $902,230 $681,678
Year 12 $1,654,788 $0 $1,654,788 $847,955 $0 $55,904 $0 $0 $903,858 $750,929
Year 13 $1,728,839 $0 $1,728,839 $847,955 $0 $57,581 $0 $0 $905,536 $823,304
Year 14 $1,806,205 $0 $1,806,205 $847,955 $0 $59,308 $0 $0 $907,263 $898,942
Year 15 $1,887,033 $0 $1,887,033 $847,955 $0 $61,088 $0 $0 $909,042 $977,990
Year 16 $1,971,477 $0 $1,971,477 $0 $0 $62,920 $0 $0 $62,920 $1,908,557
Year 17 $2,059,701 $0 $2,059,701 $0 $0 $64,808 $0 $0 $64,808 $1,994,893
Year 18 $2,151,873 $0 $2,151,873 $0 $0 $66,752 $0 $0 $66,752 $2,085,120
Year 19 $2,248,169 $0 $2,248,169 $0 $0 $68,755 $0 $0 $68,755 $2,179,414
Year 20 $2,348,775 $0 $2,348,775 $0 $0 $70,817 $0 $0 $70,817 $2,277,957
Year 21 $2,453,882 $0 $2,453,882 $0 $0 $72,942 $1,504,411 $0 $1,577,353 $876,529
Year 22 $2,563,693 $0 $2,563,693 $0 $0 $75,130 $0 $0 $75,130 $2,488,563
Year 23 $2,678,419 $0 $2,678,419 $0 $0 $77,384 $0 $0 $77,384 $2,601,035
Year 24 $2,798,278 $0 $2,798,278 $0 $0 $79,706 $0 $0 $79,706 $2,718,572
Year 25 $2,923,501 $0 $2,923,501 $0 $0 $82,097 $0 $0 $82,097 $2,841,404
Year 26 $3,054,328 $0 $3,054,328 $0 $0 $84,560 $0 $0 $84,560 $2,969,768
Year 27 $3,191,009 $0 $3,191,009 $0 $0 $87,096 $0 $0 $87,096 $3,103,912
Year 28 $3,333,806 $0 $3,333,806 $0 $0 $89,709 $0 $0 $89,709 $3,244,097
Year 29 $3,482,994 $0 $3,482,994 $0 $0 $92,401 $0 $0 $92,401 $3,390,594
Year 30 $3,638,858 $0 $3,638,858 $0 $0 $95,173 $0 $0 $95,173 $3,543,686
Totals $62,107,972 $1,880,343 $63,988,315 $12,719,318 $66,894 $2,038,858 $1,504,411 $2,890,000 $19,219,481 $44,768,834

City of Lemoore Solar Project
Cash Flow Analysis - 15 Year Tax Exempt Lease Purchase - Constant Lease Payments



No. Site/Well No. Location Description Design kWp Annual kWh Annual $ Avoided Annual O&M Cost Solar Incentive $ Price $ Payback
1 6 North Well Field 270.00 535,410 $116,371 $4,189 $233,236 $1,088,381 6.69
2 7 North of West Hills College 194.40 316,542 $74,451 $3,164 $137,893 $699,014 6.88
3 10 Well #10 Groundmount to Well #10 Meter 252.00 407,548 $65,473 $4,111 $177,537 $953,040 10.20
4 CMC CMC Parking Arrays to Well #10 Meter 269.40 409,219 $65,741 $4,997 $178,265 $1,806,149 17.87
5 10 Well #10 Groundmount to CMC Meter 86.40 139,536 $22,326 $1,528 $60,785 $306,995 9.67
6 11 Lemoore Ave & Glendale Avenue 259.20 420,902 $106,067 $4,460 $183,354 $909,681 6.33
7 12 Cedar Lane & Bluejay Avenue 345.60 558,144 $124,243 $4,490 $243,140 $1,199,432 6.97
8 13 East of West Hills College 216.00 349,370 $88,041 $3,512 $152,193 $741,334 6.19
9 4 North Well Site 792.00 1,570,536 $202,835 $10,701 $150,107 $3,136,314 12.02

10 PD Police Department 10.80 15,552 $2,939 $380 $6,775 $46,260 11.88
11 WWTP Meter 1 (Building) 162.00 321,100 $51,922 $2,850 $139,878 $780,829 10.47
12 WWTP Well No. 9 72.00 143,208 $32,931 $1,460 $62,385 $411,701 9.19
13 WWTP Meter 2 (adjacent to East Pond) 180.00 355,346 $69,026 $3,128 $154,797 $810,871 8.39

Total 3,109.80 5,542,412 $1,022,365 $48,969 $1,880,343 $12,890,000 9.33

City of Lemoore Solar Project - Entire Program
Project Summary Table



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel   

                            City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

 Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Finance 
Department 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6700 
FAX (559) 924-9003 

 Staff Report 
 

Item # 5 

To: Lemoore City Council 
From: Cheryl Silva, Finance Director 
Date: April 11, 2013 
Subject: Audited Financial Statements and Additional Information for the 

City of Lemoore 
 
Discussion: 
The City of Lemoore has an independent auditor perform the annual audit of the City’s 
financial records and prepare the Annual Financial Statements.  The City’s independent 
auditor, Sampson, Sampson & Partners, LLP, has completed the fiscal year 2011/2012 
Report on Audited Financial Statements and Additional Information for the City of 
Lemoore.   
 
The independent auditor has issued an unqualified opinion for each of these audits.  
The unqualified opinion is the best opinion that can be given by an auditor to financial 
statements.  The unqualified opinion is issued by an auditor when the financial 
statements presented are free of material misstatements and represent fairly the 
financial position in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
Bill Patterson from Sampson & Sampson will be available Tuesday evening to answer 
any questions you may have.  The “DRAFT” of the 2011/2012 audited financials are 
available for your review.   
 
Budget Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council, by motion, accept the Report on Audited Financial Statements 
and Additional Information. 









































































































































“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

               City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
To: Lemoore City Council Item # 6 

From: JP Prichard, Administrative Analyst  

Date: April 10, 2013  

Subject:        Ratification of Lemoore Police Officers Association MOU for 2013-14 

 
Background: 
The City has been in the negotiation process with the Lemoore Police Officers Association for 
several months.  Having completed negotiations and reached tentative agreement, we are 
pleased to present to the Council the final Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for 
ratification.  The term of the MOU will be from January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014.  
Attached is the final version of the MOU, signed by the Union’s representative, for final 
ratification at the regular City Council meeting.  
 
The only significant change from the previous MOU is a 5% increase to base salary for Police 
Officers and Corporals 
 
There are no changes to retirement or other benefits.   
 
Budget Impact: 
Associated costs of the MOU will increase annual staff costs for this group by approximately 
4.4%, or $85,100, annually.   
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the City Council ratify the MOU as presented. 
 
 













































“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

               City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
To: Lemoore City Council Item # 7 

From: JP Prichard, Administrative Analyst   

Date: April 10, 2013  

Subject:        Amendment to Lemoore Police Sergeants Unit MOU for 2013-14 

 
Background: 
During the April 9, 2013, Joint Special Meeting, Council directed staff to enter into 
negotiations with the Lemoore Police Sergeants Unit in order to amend the existing 
Memorandum of Understanding with the Unit.  Having completed negotiations and reached 
tentative agreement, we are pleased to present to the Council the MOU Amendment for 
ratification.  Please find the attached Amendment, signed by the Union’s representatives, 
ready for final ratification at the regular City Council meeting.  
 
Significant changes from the previous MOU include the following: 
 

1. 4.5% increase to base salary for Sergeants 
2. $600 one-time stipend to be paid effective April 1, 2013 

 
There are no other changes to the existing MOU.   
 
Budget Impact: 
Associated costs of this Amendment in combination with provisions of the existing MOU will 
increase annual staff costs for this group by approximately 4.4%, or $24,300, annually, with 
one-time costs over the two year term of $4,250.     
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the City Council ratify the MOU as presented. 
 
 









“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

               City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
To: Lemoore City Council Item # 8 

From: JP Prichard, Administrative Analyst  

Date: April 11, 2013  

Subject:        Possible Appointment of Council Member to Budget Process 

 

Discussion: 
Staff is currently involved in producing the City budgets for Fiscal Year 2013-2014.  
Historically, this process has been led by the City Manager, who presents final draft 
recommendations to the Council to be modified as they see fit prior to adoption.   
 
With the Council’s desire to have greater understanding of the administration of the City, and 
with the recent resignation of our long-term City Manager, the Mayor has requested that the 
Council consider appointing one of its own members to play an active role in the budget 
creation process at the staff level.      
 
Budget Impact: 
Appointment would have no direct budget impact.  
 
Recommendation: 
After discussion of the Council participation in the budget formation, Council should decide if 
an appointment should be made, and, if so, appoint one of its members to participate in the 
budget process at the staff level. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

               City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
To: Lemoore City Council Item # 9 

From: JP Prichard, Administrative Analyst  

Date: April 11, 2013  

Subject:        City Manager Recruitment 

 
Discussion: 
With the resignation of City Manager Jeff Briltz, the City finds itself in need of a new chief 
executive.  There are several items that the Council will need to consider, both in the near 
and long term, in order for this to be a successful endeavor.  There is a resource put together 
by ICMA entitled “Recruitment Guidelines for Selecting a Local Government Administrator” 
that provides guidance to policy makers for the recruitment and selection process.  It has 
been previously provided to Council Members to familiarize them with some of the key 
decisions they will soon face. 
 
The first item that must be considered is the continuation of the City administration in the 
absence of a permanent City Manager.  While the Council has appointed Police Chief Laws 
as Acting City Manager, Council may wish to consider whether he will continue in this role as 
Acting City Manager until the position is permanently filled.  Other options include appointing 
another staff member to act in this capacity, or to make use of the services of a retired City 
Administrator (perhaps through ICMA’s Range Rider program) capable of holding the reins 
for a period. 
 
The next item that should be addressed is whether the Council will prevail upon in-house 
expertise to conduct the applicant search, or rely on an outside firm for this service.  It is 
possible to have a hybrid approach that utilizes outside firms for the search, while relying on 
an in-house screening method.  There are strengths and potential weaknesses of each 
approach.  Regardless of the Council’s decision, please understand that staff will play an 
active role in making sure that the Council’s wishes are followed and that a high-quality and 
professional recruitment takes place.  
 
In terms of finding the right candidate, the Council will need to take an active role in putting 
together its own profile of an ideal City Manager.  Not to be taken too lightly, it is critical that 
both the candidates and recruitment staff understand the true desires of the Council to make 
sure the screening process produces a successful candidate.  Recruitment materials will be 
designed to attract people to our community, but also need to provide an accurate profile of 
the ideal candidate.  Please see the attached recruitment flyer as a sample. 
 
Finally, Council will need to begin to consider issues of compensation.  While this can 
obviously be a range based on the qualifications, characteristics, and experience of the final 
candidate, failing to provide this information initially may discourage some candidates from 
participating in the full process without knowing what the end may be.  Some things to 



“In God We Trust” 

consider:  Was the compensation of the previous City Manager a good starting place?  Was it 
competitive?  What are local municipalities paying administrators with this level of 
responsibility?  And, at the end of the day, what can the City afford?   
  
Budget Impact: 
Expenses associated with producing recruitment materials, advertising, and candidate 
screening will likely range from $2,500 to $5,000 regardless of whether the Council relies on 
in-house expertise or an outside recruitment firm.  If an outside firm is used, it could cost as 
much as an additional $18,000 - $23,500; less if some type of hybrid model is used.   
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that, after discussing the above, Council provide direction to staff 
regarding interim administration, whether in-house or outside expertise will be utilized, a 
consensus profile of the ideal candidate, and what steps should been taken to determine 
appropriate compensation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The salary for the City Manager is open and negotiable, 
depending on qualifications.  Appointment may be made at any 
salary range and step. 
 

Retirement –The City participates in CalPERS 2% at 55 with the 
City paying the employee share for classic CalPERS members, and 
2% @ 62 without City-paid employee share for those new to the 
California Public Employees Retirement System.  

Deferred Compensation - 4% if employee contributes at least 2% 

Health and Dental - 70% paid by City 

Vacation - sliding scale starts at 11 days with up to 20 days annually 

Sick Leave - 1 day per month bankable and convertible to CalPERS credit with no cap 

Life Insurance - $20,000 term coverage paid by City 

Disability Insurance - State disability insurance paid by City 

Other Benefits - Tuition reimbursement up to $3,000 per year and separate graduate programs for 
management up to an additional $5,000, housing assistance up to $10,000 allowance forgivable loan 

Application materials are available at www.lemoore.com.  Submit a resume and City of Lemoore 

Employment Application to the Human Resources Department by June 15, 2013.  Candidates must 

clearly demonstrate through their application materials that they meet all employment qualifications 

outlined.  Following the closing date, all applications and resumes will be reviewed.  The most 

appropriately qualified candidates may be asked to provide supplemental information and a select 

group of candidates will be invited to participate in further assessment, including an oral exam.  The 

final candidates will be asked to provide work-related references and consent to a background and 

credit check before a final interview with the City Council.  References will only be contacted when 

mutual interest is established.   

Human Resources Office 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone: 559-924-6700  

is pleased to announce it is currently recruiting for the position of  

The City of Lemoore is a financially stable charter city municipality operating with a 
Council Manager form of government.  Under this type of government, the elected City 
Council establishes policy and the City Manager is responsible for executing such policy.  
Accomplishment of the City’s mission is the responsibility of the City Manager through the 
heads of the various departments, including Finance, Public Works, Parks and Recreation, 
Police, Planning, and Volunteer Fire Departments. 
 

The City of Lemoore has an $8.3 million General Fund Budget with a healthy $6.6 million 

reserve.  There are also four enterprise funds with revenues totaling $10.7 million annually.   



• Equivalent to a Bachelors degree from 

an accredited college or university with 

major course work in public 

administration, business administration, 

or related field.  An advanced degree in 

public administration or a closely related 

field is desirable. 

• Seven years of increasingly responsible 

experience in municipal government, 

including five years of administrative 

and supervisory responsibility. 

• Background as a City Manager, 

Assistant/Deputy City Manager, 

Department Head or other public sector 

executive is preferred . 

• (Traits defined by Council) 

• A dynamic leader who will foster strong 

relationships with department employees and 

other City staff 

• A solution oriented individual with high 

standards of performance and customer service 

• A true financial expert with experience and 

awareness of current economic trends as well 

as knowledge of policies and legislation which 

affect government finance and accounting 

• Able to develop and manage sound fiscal 

policies and be effective at communicating 

these policies to the City Manager, elected 

officials, and staff 

• Operational characterist ics, 
services and activities of a 

municipality 

• Advanced principals and practices 

of public administration  

• Principles and practices of 
program development  and 
administration; municipal budget 
preparation and administration; 
pe r sonne l  admin i s t r a t i on ; 
supervis ion,  t raining,  and 
performance evaluation; and 
business letter writing and report 

preparation. 

• Rules and regulations governing 

public meetings.  

• Pertinent Federal, State, and local 

laws, codes, and regulations. 

• Prepare  c lea r  and  conc ise 

administrative and financial reports 

• Prepare and administer large and 

complex program budgets 

• Analyze problems,  ident i fy 
alternative solutions, project 
consequences of proposed actions 
and implement recommendations in 

support of goals 

• Communicate clearly and concisely, 

both orally and in writing 

• Establish and maintain effective 

working relationships  

The City of Lemoore, population 

approximately 25,000, is in the central 

San Joaquin Valley.  Lemoore’s 

population continues to grow as new 

residents are attracted to the high quality 

of life and available economic 

opportunities. 

The tree-lined streets of Lemoore’s 

healthy and vibrant downtown feature a 

full array of gift shops, boutiques, 

clothing stores, salons, banks, and 

florists.  Lemoore combines the best of 

small town living with modern 

conveniences.  The City of Lemoore has 

three grocery stores, a community 

college, a new 10-screen stadium seating 

movie theater, and much more.  

Lemoore is an affordable place to live 

and has a wide variety of quality homes 

starting around $175,000.   Major 

employers in the City include Leprino 

Foods and Olam Tomato Processors. 

While the City Council and City 

Manager recognize that there are clear 

lines between the legislative and 

administrative branches of city 

government, they are committed to work 

together in a team approach to meet the 

needs of the community.  
  

Operationally, the City Manager must 

focus on the goals of the City Council 

and work to achieve those priorities.  

Internally, a greater level of information 

sharing will be vital in the efforts to 

move in a direction consistent with 

Council goals.  Organizationally, the 

ongoing transition of the workplace will 

require attention as recruitment, 

retention, and succession planning 

efforts become more important.    



Item # 10



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

              City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

              
To: Lemoore City Council 
From: Jeff Laws, Acting City Manager  
Date: April 11, 2013 
Subject:       Activity Update 
 
Reports 

♦ Refuse Report  
♦ Water Production  
♦ Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department 
♦ Building Inspections  
♦ Chamber of Commerce Quarterly Update 
♦ Trip Report - City Clerk TTC Series 100 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
March 2013 
March 2013 
March 2013 
March 2013 

1st -4th Qtr FY 12/13 
April 10, 2013 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 













MARCH 2013 CITY OF LEMOORE
BUILDING INSPECTION PERMITS REPORT

Fiscal Year 2012-13

PERMITS ISSUED           VALUATION
Last Month Current Month

Description Current Month Current Year to Date Current Month Year to Date Year to Date

Res. Single Family - New 11 70 1,477,303.70$     10,026,361.24$   11,503,664.94$      

Res. Condo./PUD - New 0 0 -$                     -$                     -$                        
 

Res. Multi-Family - New 0 0 -$                     -$                     -$                        
 

Apartment - New 0 0 -$                     -$                     -$                        

Commercial / Industrial - New 0 0 -$                     -$                     -$                        
 

Alterations - Residential 25 209 238,489.00$        1,933,482.11$     2,171,971.11$        
  

Alterations - Commercial / Industrial 3 28 28,700.00$          335,800.57$        364,500.57$           
  

Swimming Pool 2 13 35,539.00$          334,720.00$        370,259.00$           
   

Bldg. Moved or Demolished 0 0 -$                     -$                     -$                        

TOTALS 41 320 1,780,031.70$    12,630,363.92$  14,410,395.62$     
DWELLING UNITS

Location of
 Multi-Family

Description Current Month Current Year to Date Units Last Year to Date
 

Single Family 11 70 38
 

Condo/PUD 0 0 0

Multi-Family 0  0 80 335 W CINNAMON

Apartments 0 0 0

TOTALS 11 70 118
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMIT ISSUED REPORT

MARCH 2013
Permit # A.P.N. Owner Information Address Work Description Valuation Building Plumb Elect. Mech. Seismic
1301-044 020-092-017 236 HEINLEN ST PLUMBING & ELECTRICAL 

ONLY-INSTALL SINKS, 
ELECTRICAL OUTLETS, 
SERVICE PANEL, DOES 
NOT INCLUDE BATHROOM

0.00 0.00 118.00 55.50 0.00 0.50

1302-009 021-620-006 820 N 19TH AVE SEWER TIE IN TO CITY 
SERVICES

0.00 0.00 20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1302-011 023-600-046 1430 NATIONAL DR SFD, PLAN 206, 2,000 SQ FT, 
YOSEMITE, NO OPTIONS, 2-
CAR GARAGE

148,699.52 1,140.00 118.00 85.00 30.00 14.87

1302-012 023-620-021 1549 SPYGLASS DR SFD, PLAN 130, 1905 SQ FT, 
TAHOE,  NO OPTIONS, 2-
CAR GARAGE

140,562.12 1,100.00 132.00 81.68 30.00 14.06

1302-013 023-620-022 1537 SPYGLASS DR SFD, PLAN 206, 2,000 SQ FT, 
YOSEMITE, NO OPTIONS, 2-
CAR GARAGE

148,699.52 1,140.00 118.00 85.00 30.00 14.87

1302-020 023-210-017 143 S OLIVE ST SOLAR ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM WITH PANEL 
UPGRADE

25,000.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 2.50

1302-027 023-610-026 414 CANTERA AVE SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENCE, PLAN 184, 
1,848 SQ FT, 2-STORY, 2-
CAR GARAGE, ELEV. C, NO 
OPTIONS

138,312.70 1,090.00 122.00 79.68 30.00 13.83

1302-028 023-610-008 640 VISCONTI ST SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENCE, PLAN 184, 
1,848 SQ FT, 2-STORY, 2-
CAR GARAGE, ELEV. A, NO 
OPTIONS

138,312.70 1,090.00 122.00 79.68 30.00 13.83

1302-029 023-610-029 693 SIENA ST SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENCE,PLAN 138, 1,380 
SQ FT, 2-CAR GARAGE, 
ELEV. B, NO OPTIONS

104,750.96 920.00 121.00 63.30 25.00 10.48

Page 1 of 4



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMIT ISSUED REPORT

MARCH 2013

Permit # A.P.N. Address Work Description Valuation Building Plumb Elect. Mech. Seismic
1302-030 023-610-091 665 SIENA ST SINGLE FAMILY 

RESIDENCE, PLAN 164, 
1,656 SQ FT, 2-CAR 
GARAGE, ELEV. B, WITH 
BAY WINDOW AT MASTER 
BEDROOM

123,863.74 1,015.00 101.00 72.40 30.00 12.39

1302-031 023-210-027 62 S OLIVE ST INSTALLATION OF FREE 
STANDING PATIO COVER

5,265.00 170.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.53

1302-033 023-070-002 336 RIVIERA DR ADD PATIO TO SIDE OF 
HOUSE TO EXISTING 
PERMITTED PATIO

4,950.00 170.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1302-034 021-450-028 272 W BURLWOOD LN HVAC CHANGEOUT, 3.0 
TON, 13 SEER

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1302-035 021-410-001 209 W SPRUCE AVE TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 30 YR 
COMP,

9,850.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.99

1303-001 020-054-005 325 E ST TEAR OFF, WHITE 
ELASTOMERIC ROOF 
COATING ON VALLEYS, 
INSTALL LANDMARK 
SILVER BIRCH SHINGLES 
OVER EXISTING.

20,000.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.20

1303-002 023-610-054 691 FIRENZE ST SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENCE, PLAN 178, 1788 
SQ FT, 2-CAR GARAGE, 
ELEV. C, NO OPTIONS

133,613.30 1,065.00 108.00 88.58 30.00 13.36

1303-003 023-210-030 38 S OLIVE ST SERVICE PANEL 
CHANGEOUT 200 AMP

0.00 0.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 0.00

1303-004 023-610-010 668 VISCONTI ST SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENCE, PLAN 164, 
1,656 SQ FT, 2-CAR 
GARAGE, ELEV. C, BAY 
WINDOW AT MASTER 
BEDROOM

123,863.74 1,015.00 101.00 72.40 30.00 12.39

1303-006 020-171-008 542 LOMBARDY LN TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 30 YR 
COMP, 4/12 PITCH

6,980.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.70

1303-008 021-450-035 275 W HAZELWOOD DR ELECTRICAL PANEL 
CHANGE OUT

0.00 0.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 0.00

Page 2 of 4



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMIT ISSUED REPORT

MARCH 2013
Permit # A.P.N. Address Work Description Valuation Building Plumb Elect. Mech. Seismic
1303-009 021-190-042 665 E SPRUCE AVE SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 

SYSTEM, PANEL UPGRADE, 
NEW MAIN CIRCUIT 
BREAKER

43,680.00 125.00 0.00 34.25 0.00 4.37

1303-010 024-370-003 988 LEISURE DR INSTALL 8'X17 
ALLUMINUM PATIO 
COVER AT REAR OF 
HOUSE ATTACHED TO 
HOUSE

3,706.00 170.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1303-011 021-080-034 1028 TEMPLE CT SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM

35,880.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 3.59

1303-013 020-091-010 301 W D ST SIGNS FOR WELLS FARGO-
3 ILLUMINATED, 1-
AWNING COVER

8,700.00 150.50 0.00 36.00 0.00 1.83

1303-014 023-180-019 637 TAMMY LN TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 30 YR 
COMP, 5/12 PITCH

10,500.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.05

1303-015 023-220-053 155 S BYRON DR CLOSET AND BATHROOM 
EXTENSION

8,000.00 138.00 51.00 15.00 0.00 0.80

1303-016 020-171-008 542 LOMBARDY LN A/C CHANGEOUT, 3.5 TON, 
14 SEER

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1303-017 023-540-042 1345 MONARCH DR SOLAR , ROOF MOUNT, 
PHOTOVOLTAIC

61,803.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 6.18

1303-018 023-360-022 1500 MORRO LN SWIMMING POOL, 
RESIDENTIAL, 469 SQ FT

14,539.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.45

1303-022 023-060-039 271 RIVIERA DR WATER HEATER CHANGE 
OUT

0.00 0.00 27.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1303-025 023-610-006 612 VISCONTI ST SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENCE, PLAN 184, 
1,848 SQ FT, 2-STORY, 2-
CAR GARAGE, ELEV.  &/OR 
OPTIONS??)

138,312.70 1,090.00 122.00 79.68 30.00 13.83

1303-026 023-610-005 598 VISCONTI ST SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENCE, PLAN 184, 
1,848 SQ FT, 2-STORY, 2-
CAR GARAGE, ELEV.  &/OR 
OPTIONS??)

138,312.70 1,090.00 122.00 79.68 30.00 13.83

1303-028 021-090-018 1370 PINE DR TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 5/12 
PITCH,

9,600.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.96

Page 3 of 4



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMIT ISSUED REPORT

MARCH 2013

Permit # A.P.N. Address Work Description Valuation Building Plumb Elect. Mech. Seismic
1303-031 020-025-010 212 F ST WATER HEATER IN 

CLOSET ON EXTERIOR OF 
HOUSE

0.00 0.00 27.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1303-032 021-820-028 992 TRADITION DR TEMPORARY POWER POLE 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00

1303-033 021-820-010 897 LEGACY DR TEMPORARY POWER POLE 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00

1303-034 021-240-015 753 BALBOA AVE PORCH 4,875.00 125.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1303-042 021-290-010 1438 N LEMOORE AVE, APT 
B

A/C CHANGEOUT, 2 TON, 
13 SEER

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1303-048 021-810-005 WOODSIDE 06N LP 703 AMERICAN AVE TEMPORARY POWER POLE 
ON LOT 242

0.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00

1303-049 024-360-017 COLLEGE, WILLIAM J & 
DEBORAH J  H/W

1092 GOLF AVE SWIMMING POOL 21,000.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.10

1303-051 021-180-067 DE CASTRO, LEONCIO B & 
LORINA B  H/W

1483 BELINDA DR TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 5-12 
PITCH, LANDMARK 
WEATHER WOOD, 30 YR 
COMP

8,400.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.84

41 1,780,031.70 14,278.50 1,530.00 1,265.33 517.00 181.83

Page 4 of 4





“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

               City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Clerk 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
April 10, 2013 
 
 
Re:   Technical Training for Clerks, Series 100 
 
Dear Council, 
 
I had the opportunity to attend Technical Training (TTC) for Clerks Series 100 at the 
University of Riverside Extension Center March 12-15, 2013.  Institute Director Maureen 
Kane has served as the TTC instructor since the program was developed by CCAC in 2002. 
 
Series 100 is a compilation of 7 sessions each presented by several experts in the field of 
topic.  Each session included a vast amount of information presented via Power Point and 
was question and answer oriented.  Students were broken up one on one and into groups of 
3 to 5 throughout the series to participate in exercises related to the session topic. 
 
Session 101 Local Government Overview was presented by Lee Price, and Colleen J. Nicol, 
both Master Municipal Clerks with a wealth of experience in the field.  The objective of this 
session was to review the origins and formation of local government, discuss the history and 
theory of the State and local government, increase understanding of how the structure 
divides responsibility/explore the role of the municipal clerk in the process and identify areas 
where the municipal clerk can increase effectiveness.    
 
Session 102 Municipal Clerk Profession was presented by Lee Price and Vicki Kasad, both 
Master Municipal Clerks.  The objective of this session was to examine why you are well 
suited for this career and what tools you need to help you be more successful as well as 
identifying opportunities for “Take Home” learning and professional development. 
 
Session 103 Management Skills was presented by Colleen J. Nicol, Master Municipal Clerk 
with a wealth of knowledge.  The objective of this session was to review the Management 
Skills Pyramid which showed all the skills a manager must master to be successful and how 
these management skills build on each other toward success.  Students were asked to 
identify their current position on the pyramid and asked to discuss their strengths and 
challenges with each other in small groups. 
 
Session 104 Influencing Others was presented by Roger Burgraff, Ph.D.  Dr. Burgraff stated 
that his professional life mission is to help people communicate more effectively. The 
objective of this session was to learn to influence through communication in context of 
relationships and tools of influence.  
 
Session 105 Communication Skills was presented by Lee Price, Master Municipal Clerk and 
Maureen Kane, Institute Director.  Discussion ensued to provide examples of what the City 
Clerk can do to improve communication and understanding of local government.  This was a 
very informative session. 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Session 106 Ethics and Personal Values was presented by Ron Richmond, D.P.A. and Mike 
Goldware, J.D. of Compass Consulting.  The Universal Principles discussed were (1) Self 
Determination through promise keeping, truth telling and confidentiality (2) the Obligation to 
Avoid Harm (3) Doing Good and (4) Fairness/Entitlement.  Exercises were created to assist 
us in answering personal questions about ourselves and group dilemmas were presented to 
challenge our personal beliefs.  Students were then asked to rate themselves on a personal 
ethics scale and consequences for being unethical were presented. 
 
Session 107 Clerk’s Role in Emergency Crisis Management was presented by Lee Price, 
Master Municipal Clerk; Eva Buice, Certified Municipal Clerk and Maureen Kane, Institute 
Director.  The course objectives were to increase awareness of disaster and emergency 
related risks/hazards in our community; to evaluate our current community organizational and 
personal disaster plans and attitudes; identify our personal and professional role, 
responsibility and legal obligations; and develop and “action list” of reasonable goals to make 
ourselves more effective and responsive within the next three months.  Students were broken 
up into groups, provided with a scenario and asked to present an action plan. 
 
Overall this series was extremely informative.  The group interaction was methodically 
structured so that students were able to meet many of the other students attending.  I have to 
admit, I found the group exercises to be the most difficult part of the series, as it forced me 
out of my comfort zone.  However, in the end, the group exercises allowed me to get to know 
others in the field of government and gain knowledge from their experiences. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Kristie Baley 
City Clerk 
 
 
 


	Agenda 4-16-13
	SS Item 2 - Boys and Girls Clubs of America Presentation
	Item 3A - Approval - Minutes - Regular Meeting 4-2-13
	Item 3B - Approval - Minutes - Special Meeting 4-9-13 - Corrected
	Item 3C - Warrant Register 12-13 - April 11, 2013
	Item 3D-1 - Local Transportation Fund Share
	Item 3D-2 - Notice of Exemption 2013 - Local Transportation Funds
	Item 3D-3 - Resolution 2013-07 - Local Transportation Funds - Corrected
	Item 3D-4 - ATTACHMENT C Local Transportation Funds
	Item 3E - Authorization of Changes to 2012 Double Chip Seal Project
	Item 3F - Authorization to Advertise for Bids - 2013 Reclamite Street Maintenance Program
	Item 3G-1 Authorization to Advertise for Bids - 2013 Street Overlay Project
	Item 3G-2 - Attachement for Street Overlay Project
	Item 3G-3 - Updated costs for 2013 Street Overlay Project
	Item 3H-1 - 2012 Annual Housing Element and RHNA Report
	Item 3H-2 - 2012 Housing Element Annual Report
	Item 3H-3 - 2012 Housing Element - RHNA Annual Report
	Item 4-1 - Chevron Energy Solutions Solar Project
	Item 4-2 - Attachment 1 - Proposed Parking Lot Layout
	Item 4-3 - Attachment 2 - Cash Flow Analysis - Item A
	Cash Flow - 15 Years TELP

	Item 4-4 - Attachment 3 - Site by Site Analysis - Item A
	Price by Site

	Item 4-5 - Attachment 4 - Cash Flow Analysis - Item B
	Cash Flow - 15 Years TELP

	Item 4-6 - Attachment 5 - Site by Site Analysis - Item B
	Price by Site

	Item 4-7 - Attachment 6 - Cash Flow Analysis - Entire Program
	Cash Flow - 15 Years TELP

	Item 4-8 - Attachment 7 - Site by Site - Entire Program
	Price by Site

	Item 5-1 - Acceptance of Audited Financial Statements
	Item 5-2 - Audited Financial Statements
	Item 6-1 - Ratification of LPOA MOU 2013-14
	Item 6-2 - Executed POA MOU
	Item 7-1 - Amendment to Sergeants MOU 2013-14
	Item 7-2 Executed Sergeants MOU Amendment
	Item 8 - Appointment of Council Member To Budget Process
	Item 9-1 - Discussion - City Manager Recruitment
	Item 9-2 DRAFT City Manager Flyer
	Item 10 - Warrant Register - Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable Obligations
	Activity Update 4-12-13 
	AU 1 - Refuse Report March
	AU 2 - Water Production Report March
	AU 3 - LVFD Report March
	AU 4-1 - Building Inspections Report March
	AU 4-2 - Month End Reports - IssuedPermits March
	AU 5 - Lemoore Chamber of Commerce Quarterly Update
	AU 6 - Trip Report - City Clerk TTC

